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Financial and Operational Highlights

goooood

For the year ended 31 March

0030310000

% change
increase/
(decrease)
oomooo
2018 2017 %0 0
Revenue (HK$'million) Owooooo 346 562 (38.4%)
Gross profit (HK$'million) owooooo 175 289 (39.3%)
Operating loss (HK$'million) oooWwooooo (146) (221) (33.9%)
Per share oo
Basic loss per share (HK cents) ooooowooo (29.14) (31.96) (8.8%)
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) 0000007000 (29.14) (31.96) (8.8%)
Net asset value per share (HK$) ooooowooo 0.05 0.30 (83.3%)
Share price oad
— High (HK$) —wooo 1.430 2.120 (32.5%)
— Low (HK$) —wooo 1.140 1.200 (5.0%)
Financial ratios gooo
Gross profit margin (%) 00 7 %0 50.6% 51.4% (0.8) ptO O O
Average inventory turnover (days) 0000000700 245 238 2.9%
Average trade receivables turnover DO OO OOOO0O
(days) ooo 41 37 10.8%
Average trade payables turnover OO QOO0 QOQOOO
(days) oon 194 123 57.7%
Gearing ratio (%) 0ooooorwsd
— Borrowing to total assets —oooooo 68.7% 35.5% 33.2pt0O0O
— Borrowing to net asset value —O0oooooag 1,356.4% 103.7% 1252.7 ptO0 O 0O
Return on total assets (%) 000007 %0 (28.4%) (33.2%) 48 ptO OO
Return on shareholders’ fund (%) 0O OO OO 7 %0 (560.9%) (96.8%) 464.1 ptO O O
As at 31 March
030310
% change
increase/
(decrease)
oofmooo
2018 2017 % [0 O
Shareholders’ funds (HK$’000) ooowoooo 37,203 216,326 (82.8%)
Total assets (HK$'000) Ooo0woooo 734,639 631,341 16.4%
Number of shares inissue ('000) OO0OO0OO0OOOODJOOO 716,190 716,190 —

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

The board of directors (“Board” and “Directors” respectively)
of Vestate Group Holdings Limited (“Company”) presents the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018 (“Year”).

GROUP’S BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and retailing
of a diversified range of footwear products under its own brands,
namely, ACUPUNCTURE, ARTEMIS, COUBER.G, FORLERIA,
A+A2, TRU-NARI, and WALACI, through its self-managed retail
shops (“Self-managed Shops”), concession points in department
stores (“Concession Points”) and franchised stores (“Franchised
Stores”). The Group possesses an extensive sales network across
the regions of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), Hong Kong
and Taiwan.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group operated a total of 25 Self-
managed Shops (4 in the PRC and 21 in Hong Kong), 280
Concession Points (270 in the PRC, 2 in Hong Kong and 8 in
Taiwan) and 1 Franchised Stores in the PRC. During the Year,
the Group had a net decrease of 13 Self-managed Shops, 88
Concession Points and 59 Franchised Stores. The following table
summarizes the number and distribution of Self-managed Shops,
Concession Points and Franchised Stores (collectively, “Retail
Points”) in terms of geographical regions as at 31 March 2018 as
compared to last year.

gbooooboooboOomobooomaoao
Mmoo ooooooooooooo

gomoobmboz2018030310 000
moooOooooooboon

gooooo

gbooooboobooboobdooao
gddnoboooboobooooobooobmo
oo ooooooooooooon
0 0O ACUPUNCTUREU ARTEMISO COUBER.
GO FORLERIAO A+A20 TRU-NARIO WALACI
gooooooooooooooobobono
gopoooooboooboobooboooboooo

gz0180303100000000025000
400000021000 000H0280000
gomzrvo0ooooOoz2000000osgyg
goobi1ooooooobooooooboo
goooobo0oououobouoooUooogogogag
gooboooispossnoosonooooog
20180303100 00O0ooOoooOooDoOO
gogoouoooomobmooodoooooo
gooboooboog

As at 31 March 7307310
2018 2017
Self- Self-
managed Concession  Franchised managed ~ Concession  Franchised
Region oo Shops Points Stores Total Shops Points Stores Total
goo goooo oooooo oo ooo pgoooo bDooooo oo
The PRC oo

Beijing 0o 3 62 — 65 5 83 3 91
Eastern China oo — 57 — 57 — 74 2 76
Southern China o0 1 29 — 30 1 44 — 45
Western China 00 — 33 — 33 — 51 6 57
Central China o0 — 49 — 49 — 59 25 84
Northern China 0o — 40 1 H — 47 24 71
Sub-total 0o 4 270 1 275 6 358 60 424
Hong Kong oo 21 2 - 23 32 1 — 33
Taiwan oo — 8 — 8 — 9 — 9
Total oo 25 280 1 306 38 368 60 466
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

Subsequent to the completion of the acquisition of China
Consume Financial Holdings Company Limited (“CCF”), the Group
is engaged in the e-Commerce and e-Payment business. CCF
obtained the authorization from UnionPay International to provide
the services for payment clearance of transactions between the
merchants and UnionPay. During the Year, CCF commences
its e-Commerce and e-Payment business containing online and
offline payment services. At present, CCF focuses on online and
offline payment services of UnionPay Online Payment and the
Point of Sale terminals respectively. The Group intended to sell
e-Commerce and e-Payment business and planned to cooperate
with investors with technical expertise and abundant resources
to integrate their edges and resources, thereby strengthening its
position in the e-Commerce and e-Payment industry.

During the Year, the Group obtained licences to carry out Type 1
(dealing in securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and
also holds a Money Lenders Licence under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the
Year, the Group commenced to carry out its financial services
business in Hong Kong offering the diversified financial services
including securities brokerage services and money lending to
institutional and retail clients.

MARKET REVIEW

Stock market has been in wild swings amid mounting trade tension
between the PRC and the U.S., despite that the real trade war has
not been triggered. Benefited from the increasing national income
which drove up purchasing power, the domestic consumption
in the PRC has been boosted, with no influence from the trade
relationship. Although domestic demand has fueled the rapid
growth of the retail industry in the PRC, the young middle class
with strong purchasing power is considered as major consumers,
and online shopping is their major consumption pattern. Due to the
low entry cost, a large amount of competitors are being attracted
to participate in industry of online shopping. All these adverse
factors significantly undermined the profitability of the Group’s
physical stores and online stores. In addition, the rising operating
cost has adversely affected the performance of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded a decrease of 38.4% in its
consolidated revenue to approximately HK$346 million (2017:
HK$562 million). Revenue from the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan
markets decreased by 42.3%, 26% and 7% respectively. The
overall same store sales of the Group dropped by approximately
28.2% and the overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased
by 0.8 percentage points to 50.6%. The Group’s overall operating
expenses as a percentage of turnover increased by 11.2
percentage points. Loss attributable to the equity holders was
approximately HK$209 million (2017: HK$210 million). Loss per
share attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HK$29.14 cents (2017: HK$31.96 cents).

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

The three geographical market segments, namely the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan accounted for 72%, 26% and 2% of the Group’s
total revenue respectively (2017: 78%, 21% and 1%).

Various measures on inventory management were taken during
the Year in order to clear excessive stocks and maintain a healthy
inventory level. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s inventory
balance (net) was HK$97 million, down 26.8% from HK$133
million as at 31 March 2017.

The PRC

During the Year, the revenue generated in the PRC was
approximately HK$251 million (2017: HK$434 million),
representing a decrease of 42.3% as compared to the previous
year. The operation in PRC incurred a loss of HK$54 million for
the Year (2017: HK$51 million).

Same store sales dropped by approximately 31.6% and operating
deficit to revenue ratio increased by 9.8 percentage points as
compared to last year.

Hong Kong

During the Year, the revenue generated in Hong Kong was
approximately HK$88 million (2017: HK$119 million), representing
a decrease of 26% as compared to the previous year. The
operating loss in Hong Kong decreased by HK$16 million,
representing an decrease of 42% as compared to last year. Same
store sales dropped by approximately 11% while operating deficit
to revenue ratio decreased by 6.7 percentage points to 24.5% as
compared to last year.

Taiwan

During the Year, the revenue generated in Taiwan was
approximately HK$7 million (2017: HK$8 million), representing a
decrease of 7% as compared to the last year. The operating loss
in Taiwan increased by HK$0.4 million, representing an increase
of 94.8% as compared to last year. Same store sales decreased
by approximately 2.5% while operating deficit to revenue ratio
raised by 5.7 percentage points to 10.9% as compared to last
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Position

The Group maintained a stable financial position throughout the
Year. It financed its operations with internal funding, issuing the
bonds and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$54 million (2017: HK$33 million) and outstanding
bank borrowing bearing a fixed interest rate of HK$5 million (2017:
HK$5 million) with a maturity of less than one year. The bank
loan was denominated in New Taiwan dollars. The Group had no
outstanding bank borrowing bearing a floating interest rate (2017:
HK$67 million) as at 31 March 2018. Current and non-current
convertible bonds were approximately HK$18 million and HK$137
million respectively. As at 31 March 2018, the current ratio stood
at 3.3 times (2017: 1.0 times) and the gearing ratio stood at 68.7%
(2017: 35.5%).

Subsequent to the completion of disposal of properties on 9
March 2018, the Group withdrew from the banking facilities (2017:
HK$112 million) and no charge on its assets. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had aggregate of approximately HK$6 million
of bank loans for trade financing and bank guarantees for rental
deposit (2017: HK$79 million). As at the date of this report, the
Group had no bank loans and bank guarantees.

During the Year, inventory turnover days increased to
approximately 245 days (2017: 238 days). As at 31 March 2018,
inventory amounted to approximately HK$97 million (2017:
HK$133 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
HK$16 million (2017: HK$10 million), comprising principally the
purchase of leasehold improvements, computer equipment and
computer software.

The Group believes that its current cash holding, cash flow from
operations and available banking facilities will be sufficient to fulfil
its working capital requirements and its financial position remains
sound for continuous operation and expansion.

Foreign Exchange Management

The Group operates principally in the PRC and Hong Kong and
its transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi or Hong
Kong dollars. The Group does not expect any significant foreign
currency risk and did not enter into any forward contract to hedge
its foreign exchange risk during the Year.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

Convertible Bonds

(@) On 24 June 2016, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with the subscriber in relation to the Company
issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 (“First Bonds”). Pursuant to
which the First Bonds will bear coupon interest at the rate
of 6% per annum and may be converted into 16,574,585
new Shares at a conversion price of HK$1.81 per share
and due 2020. The First Bonds was issued on 5 July 2016.
The net proceeds from the First Bonds were approximately
HK$28,900,000 and had been utilised during the period from
receiving the proceeds to 31 March 2018 as follows:

1. Interest payment of the First Bonds
2. Payment of salary and rental expenses for the
operation of the existing businesses of the Group

goood

(a)

goboooboboon
gobooobooonb
gooooooo

gz20l60 60240000 000O00ODO
gooooboooooboooboobooon
030,000,000 000000 ODO0OO
gbodnoooobooobobooooooon
gbode00OO0ODbOODOODOODO
1.810000016,5745850 00000
gzo200 0 00 0D00ODOODO?20160 7
gs5000poooooobobooooboon
g0zseoo0ood0bpnooooOon
0201803031000 o0boo00O0O
oo

HK$900,0000 O

HK$28,000,0000 O

Total net proceeds utilised

gooooobooooog

HK$28,900,000 0 [J

As at 31 March 2018, the net proceeds of the First Bonds
has been fully utilised.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Bonds, which contain
specific obligation imposed on Mr. Zhu Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu"),
an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhu is required
(i) in his personal capacity or through any entity or company
controlled by him, to hold at least 50% of the issued share
capital of the Company; and (ii) to remain as an executive
Director. Any non-compliance with the aforesaid obligation
will constitute an event of default and upon the bondholder
giving a notice to the Company, the bonds will immediately
become due and payable in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the First Bonds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

(b) On 8 August 2016, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the subscriber in relation to
the Company issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in
principal amount of HK$150,000,000 (“Second Bonds”").
Pursuant to which the Second Bonds will bear coupon
interest at the rate of 10.5% per annum and may be
converted into 81,300,813 new Shares at a conversion price
of HK$1.845 per share and due 2019. The Second Bonds
was issued on 24 August 2016. The net proceeds from the
Second Bonds were approximately HK$146,900,000 and had
been utilised during the period from receiving the proceeds
to 31 March 2018 as follows:

1. Development of One Belt, One Road” related
businesses

2. Acquisition of the equity interests of design
management related enterprise

3. Interest payment of the First Bonds
and Second Bonds

gobomoooomon
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HK$104,100,0000 O
HK$3,100,0000 O

HK$20,756,0000 O

Total net proceeds utilised

goboobbooooog

HK$127,956,0000 O

As at 31 March 2018, the balance of the net proceeds was
approximately HK$18,944,000 of the Second Bonds was
deposited with the Bank in Hong Kong and will be used for
the intended uses as set out in the announcement dated 8
August 2016.

Corporate Bond

The Company entered into a subscription agreement with an
investor on 5 May 2017 (“Subscription Agreement”) in relation
to the Company issue the bonds to the investor for subscribing
in principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12%
per annum for the first year and 13% per annum for the second
year and due 2019 (“Bonds”). The Bonds was issued on 8 May
2017. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, which contains a
specific performance obligation imposed on Mr. Zhu, that during
the term of the Bonds, Mr. Zhu together with parties acting in
concert with him, should own directly or indirectly more than 50%
of the voting shares of the Company. Any breach of the aforesaid
specific performance obligation may constitute a breach under the
Subscription Agreement, pursuant to which the investor is entitled
to redeem the Bonds immediately in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Bonds.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no pledge of assets. (2017:
HK$119 million).

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Ooooooon

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities or off-balance sheet obligations (2017: Nil).

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the Year, there was no material change in the corporate
structure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of 1,169 employees
(2017: 1,622 employees) and the total staff cost for the Year was
HK$156 million (2017: HK$207 million), representing 45% of the
Group'’s total revenue. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees, including mandatory retirement funds,
insurance, medical coverage and purchase discounts. In addition,
incentive share options and performance-based discretionary
bonus on an annual basis may be granted to employees subject to
the Group’s and individual performance. The Group also provides
regular trainings and workshops to its frontline and back office
staff on sales techniques, product knowledge and team building.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 17 June 2017, the Company entered into the preliminary
agreement with the vendor, a company incorporated in ltaly
(“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Company will acquire the
properties located at Milan, Italy from the Vendor (“Properties”) for
a purchase price of Euro 34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$297,160,000) (“Acquisition”). The Vendor and the Company
will further enter into the notarial deed of purchase, which is within
six months after completion of the construction of the Properties.
The construction of the Properties commenced in June 2017 and
the Properties are currently under construction and completed
around 50% of overall project and the construction is expected to
be completed on schedule in June 2019. The Acquisition presents
an opportunity for the Group to gain exposure in one of the most
fashionable cities, to enhance brand recognition and image.
The Group intends to lease out part of the properties to set up
a lifestyle flagship store that offers entertainment, shopping and
catering enjoyment in Milan, Italy. The Acquisition will also enable
the Group to further explore the e-Payment business in Milan. The
Group intends to install point of sale terminals (“POS”) with the
potential merchants for the commercial units of the Properties, and
income can be generated from the fee charged based on the total
transaction amounts consumed through those POS. Besides, the
Acquisition represents an attractive investment opportunity for the
Group. As the Group intends to lease out the remaining part of the
Properties, it is expected that the steady source of rental income
generated from the Properties will strengthen the Group’s income
base.
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The Vendor is beneficially owned as to 70% by Ms. CAI Jiaying,
an executive Director, and hence the Vendor is a connected
person of the Company. The Acquisition constitutes a connected
transaction on the part of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios set out in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
Acquisition are more than 25% but less than 100%, the Acquisition
also constitutes a major transaction on the part of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is therefore subject
to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholder’s
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
Details of the Acquisition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 June 2017 and the circular dated 31 October
2017. An ordinary resolution was passed by shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting on 27 November 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 6 February 2018, Trunari Enterprises Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) entered into
four sets formal agreements with four purchasers, all are the third
parties independent of the Company and its connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules), in relation to the Vendor sell
four properties to four purchasers in the aggregate consideration
of HK$150,000,000 (“Disposals”). Pursuant to (1) the first formal
agreement, the Vendor sell the first property situated at Units
1 to 20 on 7th Floor Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing
Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong to the first purchaser
at a consideration of HK$128,000,000; (2) the second formal
agreement, the Vendor sell the second property situated at Units
09 on 6th Floor Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong to the second purchaser at
a consideration of HK$9,500,000; (3) the third formal agreement,
the Vendor sell the third property situated at Units 13 on 6th Floor
Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong to the third purchaser at a consideration of
HK$9,500,000; and (4) the fourth formal agreement, the Vendor
sell the fourth property to the fourth purchaser. The fourth property
is car parking space L16 on basement situated at Hope Sea
Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$3,000,000. The Board
expected that the net proceeds will be used for the repayment
of mortgage loan secured by the Properties and the remaining
balance as general working capital of the Group. Details of the
Disposals are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
7 February 2018. The Disposals was completed on 9 March 2018.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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POSSIBLE SALE OF THE COMPANY’S SHARES BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 29 October 2017, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”), an executive
Director and chairman of the Board and is interested in
513,300,002 shares of the Company, representing approximately
71.67% of the entire issued share capital of the Company had
entered into the non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(“MOU”) with an independent third party (“Potential Purchaser”),
regarding the possible sale of the Company’s shares which
may be sold by Mr. Zhu to the Potential Purchaser (“Possible
Sale”). Mr. Zhu and the Potential Purchaser also entered into six
extension letters in relation to the date of entering into the sale
and purchase agreement was extended to on or before 30 June
2018. As the Potential Purchaser and Mr. Zhu failed to enter into
the sale and purchase agreement on or before 30 June 2018, the
MOU has terminated as at 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of
impact on the Group’s financial performance, operations, business
as well as future prospects. The financial risk and capital risk
are set out in the consolidated financial statements. Besides,
the following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

(i) Increase in rental and concession fees;

(i) Reliance on key management personnel;

(i)  Misjudgement of fashion trends or changes in consumers’
demand or failure to respond to such changes in a timely
manner;

(iv) Competition in footwear market in the PRC and Hong Kong;
and

(v) Economic downturn in the PRC and Hong Kong.

OUTLOOK

While certain uncertainties of world economies still persist in 2018,
the Group is cautious about the overall business and will actively
adopt various reform measures to overcome the challenges in
2018. In the coming year, the Group will seize opportunities
to continuously explore business opportunities for sound
development of the Group’s business.
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Amid escalating staff costs and shop rents, the Group will
continue to restructure the sales network throughout the PRC.
During the period, to manage the expansion of shops discreetly
with resources focusing on first-tier cities with strong purchasing
power, the Group has reduced the retail points in the PRC from
424 stores in the same period last year to 275 stores, thereby
enhancing management efficiency and attaining effective use of
resources. To contain the pressure from inventories and enhance
its cashflows, the Group will take preemptive initiatives to expand
the sales channels. For example, it will set up pop-up outlets
and step up the efforts in developing its wholesales business.
The Board expects that such measures in place will maintain the
steady development of retailing business segments.

Taking a series of UnionPay payment methods as basis, the Group
plans to expand its foreign business and intend to promote the
businesses related to UnionPay Online Payment, Apple Pay, Point
of Sale in various regions including Hong Kong, Japan, the United
Kingdom, Korea, France and lItaly. The Group has commenced
certain e-Payment businesses in Hong Kong, and will continue
to consider Hong Kong as the target city of its main development
in 2018, whereas Japan and the United Kingdom, which have a
business connection with us, will be the secondary target cities
accordingly.

The report of the 19th CPC National Congress proposed to
deepen the institutional reform in the financial sector on various
fronts, with an aim to provide considerable opportunities for
Hong Kong's economic and financial development. With the PRC
backing, the Group is optimistic about the financial business in
the coming year. During the period, the Group began to engage
in securities transaction business and provision of securities
brokerage services for individuals and corporate customers. The
Group plans to provide welcome offers upon account opening
to attract new customers. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
cultivate talents and enhance its services, providing our customers
with unsurpassed services.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow board members and all staff
members for their outstanding contributions to the Group over
the past year, and also to express my sincere gratitude to the
shareholders and stakeholders for their trust and support.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing and maintaining good
corporate governance practices within the Group to have better
transparency and protection of shareholders’ interest in general.
We believe that a well-balanced corporate governance structure
will definitely enable better management of its business risks and
thereby ensure the Group is operated in the best interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). These functions included:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, there are three board committees under the
Board, namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
which have been posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. These committees report directly to the Board
on their works and make recommendations on matter where
appropriate.

Save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all

applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018 (“Year”).
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Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Throughout
the Year, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu") is the Chairman of the
Board and is responsible for providing leadership and ensuring
effective running of the Board. The duties of the chief executive
are undertaken and performed by the Chairman of the Board, thus
Mr. Zhu also responsible for the Group’s day-to-day operations
and implementation of the Group’s strategies and is assisted by
a management team, comprising executive Directors, general
managers and department heads of the Group, with authority and
responsibility for developing and exercising both operational and
non-operational duties. Despite a part of responsibility of chief
executive is vested in Mr. Zhu, in which all major decisions are
made in consultation with the other Board members and the senior
management of the Company. The Board believes that there is
sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains
a strong management position of the Company. As such, this was
in deviation from A.2.1 of CG Code.

According to Rule 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
code provision A.5.1 of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange, the Board is required
at least three independent non-executive Directors, the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”) must comprise
a minimum of three members and both of the remuneration
committee of the Board (“Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination Committee”)
should comprises a majority of independent non-executive
Directors. Following the resignation of Dr. HE Chengying as the
independent non-executive Director and ceased to the member
of both Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and
ceased to the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect
from 1 April 2017, the Board has two independent non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee comprises only two members and
both of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
comprises the chairman of the Board and one independent non-
executive Director. This was in deviation from Rules 3.10(1), 3.21
and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of CG
Code.

However, following the appointment of Mr. LEUNG Man Ho as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee with effect from 19 June 2017, the Company has
three independent non-executive Directors, the Audit Committee
comprises three members and both of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee comprises a majority
of independent non-executive Directors in compliance with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and code provision A.5.1 of CG Code.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s directions,
strategies and policies, approval of annual budgets and
business plans, overseeing and reviewing the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems, formulating the
corporate governance policy and supervising a management team
comprising executive Directors, general managers and department
heads of the Group. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters and material transactions of the Group.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (“INED”),
in compliance with the minimum number of INEDs required under
Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rule. Details of the Board composition
are as follow:

Board of Directors

Executive Director Membership of Board Committee(s)

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun Member of Remuneration Committee
(Chairman) Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. KANG Jianming —

Ms. CAl Jiaying —

Mr. YIN Wansun —

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong Chairman of Audit Committee
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors
and INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the Group. The INEDs provide the Group with diversified
expertise and experience. Their views and participation bring
independent judgment and advice on issues relating to the Group’s
strategies, performances, conflicts of interests of all shareholders
are taken into account. The number of INEDs has been no less
than one-third of the number of the Board members and at least
one of whom possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualification and related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Director

In accordance with the Company’s Article of Association
(“Articles”), the Board shall have the power from time to time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each
AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and all Directors are subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The CG Code provides that the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Year and up to the date of this Report,
as explained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Practices” on page 16 of this report, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun assumed
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive of the Company
simultaneously.

Independent Non-executive Director

All INEDs are appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation. No INED has served the Company for more
than 9 years. Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all INEDs are independent.

Company Secretary

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the senior
management. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable laws are followed. During the Year, the company
secretary has complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Training and Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The training records for the Year had
been provided to the company secretary by all Directors of the
Company. A summary of trainings received by the Directors for the
Year is shown as below:

gobooooob

ooooooooooooboobobooooon
gooooooobooooooooobooobooon
ooooooooooooooogoogoooo
oooooooooooooooooooon
gooooooog

Type of training

Name of Directors oooo oooo
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) Oo0o0o0Wooo A&B
Mr. KANG Jianming ooooo B
Ms. CAl Jiaying ooogdagd A&B
Mr. YIN Wansun googoagd A&B
Ms. ZHAO Hong oooad B
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing googag A&B
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho ogooog A&B
Notes: oon
A: attending briefing sessions and/or seminars AD O0O0O0OO0O0O0OO0O0OO0O0O
B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest B O0O0O0O0O0O0D0OO0OOOCOOOOOOOOOCODO
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory vooooooobooooo

requirements

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been
arranged for the Directors and officers of the Company for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage of directors’ and officers’ liability is reviewed
on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the Group’s business
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results. The Board members are served with notices of
at least 14 days and provided with all agendas and adequate
information for their review at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
After the Board meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by the company secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. During the
Year, four Board meetings were held.

19

gobooobooobao

oooouooooooooooooooooo
ooooooooooooooooooooo
oooooooooooooooooooon
goooooooooo

gooon

goooouoooooooooooooooo
odobooboooooooooooooooo
ugoooooooooooooooooon
goboobobooboobob4oboooon
goboo3goooooooobooooon
gdodooooooooooooooooon
gogooooooooooooooboobooo
ggooooooooooooooooooo
goobooboooooooooooooooao
ggooooooooooooooooooo
goo

Annual Report 2017/2018
2017/20180 00O




Corporate Governance Report
O0odbdno

All Directors are adequately briefed on updates on amendments
to or latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations concerning their obligations as
Directors and good corporate governance practices. They were
also provided with the Group’s monthly management updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects to enable
the Board and each Director to discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three members, all
INEDs, namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. CHAU Wai Hing
and Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017). During the
Year, Dr. HE Chengying (“Dr. He") resigned as INED and ceased
as a member of the Audit Committee effective from 1 April 2017
and Mr. LEUNG Man Ho was appointed by the Board as INED
and as a member of Audit Committee effective from 19 June 2017
in replacement of Dr. He. No member of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm.
The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications in accountancy and experience in
financial matters.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
procedures, to review the Group’s financial information, to oversee
relationship with the Group’s external auditors and make relevant
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee held
two meetings during the Year and its works performed include
reviewing the adopted accounting principles and practices, the
annual and interim consolidated financial results and reports,
reviewing external auditors’ audit plan, terms of engagement and
recommended auditors’ fees for the Board’s approval, reviewing
the management letters and reports issued by the external
auditors and reviewing the internal audit review reports for
assessing effectiveness of internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises four members,
the majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are
INEDs, namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman) (appointed on
16 June 2017), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. CHAU Wai Hing and Mr.
LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017). During the Year,
Dr. He resigned as INED and ceased as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee effective from 1 April 2017. In replacement
of Dr. He, the Board appointed Ms. ZHAO Hong as the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee effective from 16 June 2017 and
also appointed Mr. LEUNG Man Ho as INED and as a member of
Nomination Committee effective from 19 June 2017.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies, to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board on selection of individuals
for directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession plan for Directors,
in particular the Chairman and chief executive officer. The
Nomination Committee was provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013 which
set out the approach to diversity on the Board. The Board shall
consider various aspects in achieving diversity of Board members,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race and gender. The Nomination Committee will
monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and
review the policy as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year
and its works performed includes reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; approving the appointment of an
Executive Director; and assessing independence of the INEDs.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
the majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
INEDs, namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun
and Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017). During
the Year, Dr. He resigned as INED and ceased as a member
of Remuneration Committee effective from 1 April 2017 and
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho was appointed by the Board as INED and as
a member of the Remuneration Committee effective from 19 June
2017 in replacement of Dr. He.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures
for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, to make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of INEDs and to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee was provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and may seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense, where necessary.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year
and discussed the remuneration package for certain Directors and
senior management as well as other remuneration-related matters.

DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting,
Audit Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting,
Remuneration Committee Meeting and shareholder’'s meeting
during the Year are set out below:

gooooooooooooboobobooooo
ogoooooooooooboboboboooon
goooooooo

goboooooon

ggoooooooooobobobboooon
ggoooooooooooooooooon
gobooooooo

Attendance/Number of meetings held
for the year ended 31 March 2018
002018030310 000000000O0O0OCOCO
Audit Nomination  Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee 2017
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM/EGM
20170
goooooo
goooo 0OOO0OOOOCO OOOOODOD OO0OCC0OoO gooooo
Executive Directors ooon
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman of the Board 0000Woooono
and Member of the Remuneration and oooooooonooon
Nomination Committees) 414 — 11 11 212
Mr. KANG Jianming ooooo 34 — — — 212
Ms. CAl Jiaying ooooo 34 — — — 212
Mr. YIN Wansun ooooo 414 — — — 212
Independent Non-executive Directors oooooon
Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman of Audit, 000Wooooonono
Remuneration and Nomination oooooo
Committees) 414 212 11 11 212
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing (Member of the Audit ooooo
and Nomination Committees) oooooooononn 414 212 11 — 212
Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (Member of Audit, oooowooooonn
Remuneration and Nomination oooooon
Committees) 414 212 11 11 212

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors, they have confirmed their compliance
with the Model Code throughout the Year. On June 2013, the
Company was adopted written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of
the dealings in the Company’s securities.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by the shareholders of the Company in general
meetings. During the Year, PricewaterhouseCoopers was retired
as external auditor at the AGM and the Group appointed BDO
Limited as external auditor to perform the following services and
their respective fees charged are set out as follows:

gooon

ooooooooooooobobooboooon
gooooooooooooooooboooboo
ooooooooooooobbooobog
oo oUgoUgggo
goooooooooooooooooooo
ooooooooooooobobooogoooo
goboooobooooog

Type of Services oooo 2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000

ooo ooo

Audit services oOooa 1,650 2,550
Non-audit services ooooag 44 91
Total oo 1,694 2,641

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays
a major role in providing objective assurance to the Board that a
sound and effective risk management and internal control system
is in place and operated by the management. The head of the
internal audit department directly reports to the Audit Committee
on risk management and audit matters. The annual audit works
plan covered the business activities and process of the Group’s
core operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be
performed on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee and the management from time to time.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, while the management
ensures the sufficient and effective operational controls over
the key business process are properly implemented with regular
review and update. Review the internal controls of the Group
mainly covering financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The risk management
and internal control system are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The implementation of the Group’s risk management evaluation
was assisted by the internal audit department so that the Group
could ensure new and emerging risk relevant to the Group’s
operation are promptly identified by management, assess the
adequacy of action plans to manage these risks and monitor
and evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. The Audit
Committee reviews regularly the Group’s risk management
systems.
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Through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. To maintain a sound and effective system of internal
control and safeguard our shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets at all times, the Group has an independent audit
team to review and monitor all critical aspects of the Group’s
activities and its internal control. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed the findings of the internal control review and evaluation
of risk level of the Group could take and effectiveness of risk
management measures performed by the internal auditors and
external auditors together with the Audit Committee and, after
discussion with the management and external auditors, was
satisfied that the Group’s internal control system and assessment
of risk management was sound and adequate for the Year. The
Board would continue to review and improve the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, taking into account the
prevailing regulatory requirements, business development needs
and the interests of shareholders.

The Board also reviews annually the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the channels by which information is communicated
with its shareholders. The Company’s corporate communications
includes among other things, announcements, financial reports,
circulars and other corporate communications which are
disseminated through its website at www.vestategroup.com
and the website of the Stock Exchange in compliance with the
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Company’s shareholders. All Directors will make
an effort to attend general meetings. The chairman of the
AGM proposes separate resolution for each issue and invites
presence of chairman of each of the Board Committees for
answering questions at the AGM. External auditor also attends
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of audit, the
preparation and content of auditors’ report and the confirmation
of auditor’s independence. The notice of AGM and related papers
are distributed to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM. At the AGM, the Chairman ensures that detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are explained.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (the “ESG report”) issued by Vestate Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “We”). This report mainly includes the performance
of our offices, warehouses and stores at our main operating
points in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) , Hong
Kong and Taiwan in respect of environmental protection, social
responsibilities and corporate governance. We will also review
on such relevant performance for our further improvement in the
future.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

In addition to the continuous assessment of the scope of the
Group’s existing footwear sales business in the report of the Year,
the Group has also assessed the newer businesses as appropriate
to gradually increase the scope of disclosures based on their
impact on the Group’s businesses.

Unless otherwise stated, the environmental data only cover the
footwear sales business of the Group in Hong Kong and PRC. The
data on offices and main operating points in Taiwan are excluded
due to insignificant impact on the environment.

REPORTING PERIOD

The reporting period covers 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 (the
“Year”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Different stakeholders are influential on the Group. However, we
believe that resources should be deployed on the information
disclosures for our most significant stakeholders, such as
employees and suppliers, and extend to other stakeholders. We
are open-minded to encourage our stakeholders to express their
opinions through various channels.

ENVIRONMENT
Environmental Protection

The Group has formulated a series of management objectives
for environment and natural resources protection conforming to
our direction in sustainable development and operation. To make
reasonable use of various energy, resources and materials, the
Group regularly collects greenhouse gases emission data from
certain operating facilities during its operation with reference
to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Information analysis provides us with clear
directions to improve our daily operations, which facilitates the
implementation of measures, the gradual enhancement of resource
efficiencies and the contribution to environmental protection in the
future.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Raise the awareness of environmental protection within the
Group and optimise the use of resources

To raise the awareness of environmental protection within the
Group and the responsible use of resources, information is shared
internally. Meanwhile, we have also introduced measures on
energy, water and paper conservation and the proper use of air-
conditioners. We have assigned employees to explore and collect
more information on environmental protection, pay close attention
to the relevant information updates and communicate such
information to all employees of the Group.

Incorporate environmental protection into the design and
renovation of our stores

The design and renovation of our stores features with waste
reduction in fusion with various factors such as energy
conservation and the use of reusable materials, which are also our
priority concerns.

Strengthen the management of performance indicator
measures

We strengthen statistics and data collection in relation to the
fuels, energy consumption and waste generated from offices,
warehouses and sales points during the course of business.
Through data processing and analysis, we can further create a
more suitable environmental protection policy.

The extensive footwear sales business network of the Group
covers a total of 306 sales points, 18 offices and 14 warehouses
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan with 1,169 employees. We
believe that the increasing environmental protection awareness
of our employees can in turn improve the performance of the
Group as a whole and even inspire others to make their effort.
The following initiatives are widely promoted to our staff, such as
water conservation, turning-off of unnecessary lighting and air-
conditioning after work or during lunch breaks, as well as setting
sleeping mode management of computers. We also set up used
papers collection boxes, encourage our staff to use double-sided
printing, send documents through emails and review documents
online. Our staff is also advised not to use single-use paper cups
for daily use. Environmental protection tips in electronic forms
and related activities are provided for our staff to encourage their
participation. We also encourage our staff to share information on
environmental protection by keeping them in the shared file on
the central network of regional offices. In this way, green living
information can be shared among our staff to enhance their quality
of life and help to enhance environmental protection.
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We understand that the harm caused by the emission of pollutants Jododooooooooooooooooo
from vehicles and aircrafts to the environment should not be o0o0o0oooDoDoooOooooooooooog
neglected. However, it is inevitable to use vehicles to transport 00o0ooooooooooooooooon
our products between various sales points and warehouses in 0oooooooooooooooooooo
the course of our operations, and our management needs to ddddd0ddddddddodogogogda
travel by plane and other forms of transportation in managing ooooooooooooooooooooon
our business. The Group continuously monitors our use of 0o0oooooooooooooooooon
transportation and sets up appropriate measures to balance all J00d0dd0d0ddddddooggogogo
stakeholders’ interests. Our existing measures include gradually dooooooooooo

upgrading our business vehicles to the European emission

standards, maintaining good maintenance and repair for vehicles

and adopting electronic means for business communications, such

as the use of video conference, or conference calls and other

electronic devices.

To ensure the sustainable development and better performance of 0o0oooooooooooooooooon
our policies and measures for balancing the interests of different Oo00oooodooooooooooooog
stakeholders, we have started to collect data on the emission of Oooooooooooooooooboooa
greenhouse gases during our operation in the Year. The collected O0o00oooooDoooooog

data during the Year are as follows:

During the Year, the petrol and diesel fuel consumption of the oooooooooDoOoOoOooooogad
Group from company vehicles was approximately 30,928 liters 309280 000 000DOOCOO7400000
and the carbon emission was approximately 74 tonnes CO2e oo

Scope 1: 2018
Direct emissions of (petrol/diesel 2018
greenhouse gases Coverage fuell/liters) (tonnes/C0O2e)
2018
o010 2018 ooag
oooooooo oood ooooooooo goooooo
— Retail business in the PRC
goooooog
Emissions from vehicles — Hong Kong offices and warehouses 30928 74
oooad 0odooooooo ’
— Dongguan offices
Oooooao
(* Note: 1) o*000in
During the Year, the purchased electricity of the Group was 00o00oo0oo0ooooooon3,026,4830 000
approximately 3,026,483 kWh and carbon emission was 0000000024220 0000000
approximately 2,422 tonnes CO2e
Scope 2:
Indirect emissions of
greenhouse gases from 2018
energy consumption Coverage 2018 (kWh) (tonnes/C0O2e)
2018
goo
Jgd200000000000O oooo 2018 0000 ogoooooo
— Retail business in the PRC
Oooooood
— Hong Kong (offices/stores/warehouses)
Purchased electricity 00mooo,/ 00,7000 3.026.483 2 499
gooo — Guangzhou (offices/warehouses) ’ ’ ’
0O0mooo, /000
— Dongguan (offices)
gomooog
(* Note: 1) O*00010

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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During the Year, the carbon emission generated from 0000ooooDoooooooooooooog
outsourced transportation vehicles and staff business trips by gdo0boobobDoooDo11e300o0boonono
planes of the Group was approximately 103 tonnes CO2e
Scope 3: 2018
Indirect emissions of greenhouse gases Coverage (tonnes/C0O2e)
2018
oosd ooo
ogooooooo ogooo goooooo
— Retalil business in the PRC
Outsourced transportation vehicles 00oooboooo 71
oooooo — Dongguan offices
Ooooooo
— Retail business in the PRC
Ooooooooo
Staff business trips by planes — Hong Kong offices and warehouses 32
goooooooon Oooooooooo
— Dongguan offices
oooooo
Total
00 103
(* Note: 1 & 2) o*000i1, 20
During our business operations, store improvement and renovation dooodboDooooooooooooooao
are indispensable which could cause direct damages to the J0000o0o0oooogoooooogooo
environment. To mitigate the damages, we begin with the source. Jdddooddooogooooooogooo
In the context of our design concept, parts of the furniture are Jd0o00o0o0o0ooogooooooogooo
designed for recycling, renewable materials are used whenever 0Jdddooooooooooooooooo
possible and the energy-efficient lighting is more widely used in 0o00oo0odooooooooooooao
our illumination system. Disposal of wastes from closed stores is 0do0o0ooooooooooo201lednodnO
outsourced to subcontractors holding environmental protection J0o0dddoooooooooooooooo
certificates for waste separation and disposal. From mid-2016 00odoooooooooooooooooo
onwards, store design and tools manufacturing have been put into 00000000oooooooogo

centralised management, waste separation and disposal of wastes
has been carried out by subcontractors holding environmental
protection certificates in some regions, with an aim to continuously
promote such practice to each province and city.

Notes: oo

1. Carbon emission is calculated with reference to the Reporting 1 ooooooonoooonmoooond
Guidance on Environmental KPIs published by the Stock Exchange; g S SDDDDE?]%]EDD % % g EI S S DD DDE?[?]D u
Greenhouse Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development (WBSCD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI).

2. Emission data of business trips by air is calculated using the carbon 2. ooooooo0ooooOooooooooOoo
emission calculator of the International Civil Aviation Organization. (International Civil Aviation Organization) O O

ooooooo
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

In an era where intense competition abounds, we regard
intelligent, creative and dedicated staff as the Group’s most
valuable asset. We acknowledge good employment relationships
and a committed team are the keys to the Group’s efficient
operations.

We care about the communication with our staff, encourage our
staff at all levels to express their opinions through various staff
activities, such as meetings, suggestion boxes and websites. We
advocate a harmonious environment and organise occasional
and different types of meetings and outdoor activities to lift the
barriers between staff, creating a healthy and harmonious working
environment.

Employment

As of 31 March 2018, the Group employed 1,169 employees, of
which approximately 1,033 were based in the PRC, 114 in Hong
Kong and the remaining in Taiwan. We are in compliance with
the employment regulations of the regions where our business is
situated, details of which are set out below:

1. Labour wages, overtime pay and related benefits meet (or
exceed) the local minimum wage;

2. Leaves and statutory paid leaves comply with the local
government requirements;

3.  Our employees are treated equally by the Group. The
employee’s social identity, such as ethnicity, race, nationality,
gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political factions
and marital status, will not affect his/her employment,
remuneration package and promotion;

4. Staff Code of Practice of the Group is formulated with
reference to the employment regulations of relevant regions
which comply with the standard requirements of the national
and local government.

Health and Safety

The Group values the health and safety of our staff. We consider
that health is essential for wealth and a bright future. Basic
medical benefits and a safe working environment are offered to
employees to reduce casualties and money loss arised during
work.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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In compliance with Fire Services Ordinances, we set up fire
escapes, emergency lightings and fire escape maps for emergency
escape. First-aid kits are in place at each work station. Guidance
and working guidelines regarding moving goods safely and the
use of trolleys are provided for staff subject to higher risk of
work-related injuries, such as warehouse staff. Our retail staff
are provided with occupational health guidance, which gives
instructions on the safe use of ladders, climbing ladders and
stocking shelves to avoid injuries.

Development and Training

In the fast-changing market with intense competition, we believe
that only by pursuing knowledge and innovation, remaining full
alert, leveraging on intelligence and creativity, and above all,
improving efficiencies of the management teams can we respond
to new challenges in this new era. Consequently, the Group’s
objective is to increase the capabilities of our staff at all levels.
To accommodate the occupational developments, we will continue
to establish a series of courses based on the needs to enhance
employees’ skills and encourage employees’ continuous learning.

We provide induction trainings for the new frontline staff. Such
trainings comprise introduction of the Company, rules of the
Company, occupational safety and the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance; fundamental store management, product knowledge,
sales techniques and customer services, all of which help new
staff fitting into our team as soon as possible.

The Group also supports self-improvement and encourages our
staff to fully utilise their expertise at work to enhance quality. We
continuously recommend our staff to attend suitable seminars or
courses selected by us.

Seeking high-caliber individuals and cultivating talents are the
Group’s key objectives. We will not give up to achieve these
objectives through store management training programmes or
other feasible means.

Excellent enterprises cannot survive without a united and
competitive team. Therefore, we encourage employees to actively
participate in the meetings and outdoor activities organised by the
Group, during which team spirit is built and past performances are
reviewed, so that effective strategies can be developed to face the
new challenges in a new era.

Labour Standards

The Group forbids the employment of child labour, involuntary or
forced labour in all business segments. At present, there is no
significant risk of child labour or forced labour discovered within
the Group. In the case of voluntary departure, employees are
free to terminate his/her employment, provided that reasonable
notification period is given as required by their labour contracts.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Optimised supply chain management and sound procurement
management are relatively important to the sustainable operations
of the Group.

In general, we emphasized on the product quality, service
quality and business stability of suppliers in the supply chain
management system, however relatively less focus was given on
suppliers’ performance on environmental protection and social
responsibilities. We will continuously enhance the attention of our
suppliers on their performance of corporate social responsibility.
The related personnel assess and establish a list of suppliers,
whom are contacted and communicated with by the related staff,
while encourage unqualified suppliers to emphasis on corporate
social responsibility and comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is of the view that product forms the core competitive
edge of an enterprise. Our quality inspection and assurance
process includes: (i) our leather materials are sent to National
Leather Products Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre for
assessment, (ii) our products are required to pass the National
Quality Inspection for Light Industry for Leather and Fur of
Footwear Products, (iii) our professional personnel perform on-
site random inspection for suppliers, provide defect reports for
substandard products identified during the production process,
offer improvement advice and request the supplier to implement
improvements or provide detailed improvement proposals, and (iv)
follow up such proposals and continuously supervise the supplier’s
performance.

We will continuously optimize our product procurement process as
the Company’s procurement model changes, and strengthen the
review of inspection documents to ensure that our products are
compliant with the relevant laws and regulations.

For new businesses such as securities brokerage, the related
operating personnel shall comply with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by
or Registered with the Securities and Futures Commission and
Trade Descriptions Ordinance, to ensure that all information
given is correct and not misleading, defamatory or fraudulent. In
addition, we have set up appropriate working standards and codes
to make sure that all employees clearly understand the operating
requirements.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Customer Services
Data Privacy Policy

We comply with the laws and regulations in relation to personal
information and the protection of customers’ rights. We shall not
share, sell or lease any information provided by our customers in
order to protect their rights. The personal information collection
statement has been set out on our website.

Anti-corruption

The Group takes integrity, law-abiding and effective operation as
our business operations philosophy. We strongly believe that the
image of honesty, integrity and fairness is one of the important
assets of the Group. To this end, the Group expressively requires
all staff to devote great efforts to protect our reputation by keeping
fraud, disloyalty or corruption at bay. The Group regularly reminds
our staff to follow instruction and related guidance in performing
job duties. Meanwhile, our management has formulated a
whistleblowing policy and assigned the Audit Committee comprised
of Independent Non-executive Directors to receive and follow up
relevant cases.

The Company’s new businesses such as securities brokerage
business have been commenced in line with the development
approach of the Group. The Group does not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraudulent and money-laundering activities. The
relevant companies make reference to the relevant regulations,
such as Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the United Nations
(Anti-Terrorism Measures) Ordinance and the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, and
require employees to strictly abide by the relevant regulations and
guidelines.

Whistleblowing Channel

We have formulated a whistleblowing policy and all staff of the
Group was notified again in the Year.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible enterprise, we will continuously adopt appropriate
approaches to broaden the communities we serve and support the
employment of people from different backgrounds.

Community Investment

In addition to participating in community public welfare activities
as usual and providing various types of employment opportunity
at all times, the Group has also continued to provide multiple
short-term internship opportunities for vocational training
colleges’ students. Working experience and relevant expertise
can be provided to students through face-to-face interviews,
working experience, gains and losses at work and knowledge
can be exchanged to enrich the practical experience of students.
Moreover, we have been awarded the “Caring Company” logo by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for seven consecutive
years, attesting our effort in the promotion of caring for our
society. In the future, we will continuously invest various resources
in our community.

33

gooo
googogg

ggoououoooooooooooooooo
boooooooooooooooooooo
ggoooooooooooooooooon
goog

ggo

goooooooooooobooooboooon
gooooooooooooooooboooboo
goooooooooooooooooooo
ododoooooooooooooooooo
gobootboodoooooooooooooo
ooooooooooooooogoogooo
oooouooooouoooooooooooo
gooooooboo

ooooooooooooooooooooo
ooooooooooooboboooooon
gooooooobobooooooooobooooob
gomoooooooomoooooon
vtmoddgoooobobooooomoog
oomompoooboooooooooooog
gooo

gooo

goooooooooobobobbbbobobon
gobooooboobooo

HEN

ogooooooooooooooooooon
gobobooobooooboboobboon

googd

oodoododododoooooooooogo
goooooooooooooooooobbon
tdodooooooooooooogoooo
oooooooooooobooogoooooo
gjooooooooooobbooooooo
ogoooboooooooboboboboboboon
gooooboobooboobooobomnob
gbooomobooooooobooobooooob
gobobooooboooboboobbogoo

Annual Report 2017/2018
2017/20180 00O




Biographical Details of Directors
0000

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, aged 47, is the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Zhu is the bother-in-law of Ms. Cai Jiaying, who is an
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Zhu is responsible for the
overall management and strategies planning for the business
development of the Group. He is currently the general manager
of Shanghai Sunrise Pension & Services Company Limited in
the PRC. He is a sole director of China Consume Elderly Care
Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Zhu is experienced in the industry of electronic commerce. He
joined the Group in February 2016.

Mr. KANG Jianming, aged 43, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Kang obtained a Master’'s Degree in Philosophy from
the Beijing Normal University. He also completed an Executive
MBA programme from Zhongshan University in the PRC and
the China UnionPay Senior Management Programme from
the Business and Administration Department of the Tsinghua
University in the PRC. Mr. Kang worked as an economist in the
Guangdong Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited from March 2005 to December 2006. Afterwards, he
worked as the business director of Guangzhou UnionPay Network
Payment Company Limited from October 2007 to September 2015.
Mr. Kang obtained the intermediate level qualification in Finance
and Economics conferred by the Ministry of Personnel of the
Government of the PRC (currently known as the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the Government of the PRC) in
November 2002. In November 2014, Mr. Kang was appointed as a
member of the 3rd Committee of the Guangdong’s Association for
Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macao. He has extensive experience in the industry of e-Payment,
finance and economics. Mr. Kang joined the Group in February
2016.

Ms. CAI Jiaying, aged 37, is an executive Director of the Group.
Ms. Cai is the sister-in-law of Mr. Zhu Xiaojun, who is a Chairman
and an executive Director of the Group. Ms. Cai graduated from
the Shanghai Art & Design Academy with a Bachelor's Degree in
Fashion Design. Ms. Cai has extensive experience in the fashion
design industry and she also has years of experience in ladies’
fashion design, brand development as well as the management
and business operation. She is also the general manager of
Shanghai Anxin Insurance Agency Limited. Ms. Cai joined the
Group in April 2016.
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Mr. YIN Wansun, aged 56, is an executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Yin obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering from the
Dalian University of Technology (formerly known asO O 00 0)
in the PRC. He is currently the managing director of Shanghai
Fudi Industry Company Limited and is responsible for monitoring
the overall business operations. Mr. Yin has over 20 years of
experience in the corporate management field. He joined the
Group in May 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Hong, aged 48, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. She also serves as a chairman of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
Ms. Zhao also appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board effective from 16 June 2017. Ms. Zhao
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting from the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and a Master's Degree
of Business Administration from the China Europe International
Business School in the PRC. Ms. Zhao obtained the qualification
of Accountant specializing in Accounting (Corporate) conferred by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in May 1996. She is currently a
non-practicing member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is currently a finance director of EBT Digital
Communication Retail Group. Ms. Zhao has extensive experience
in the financial and accounting fields. She joined the Group in April
2016.

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing, aged 52, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr.
Chau obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Quantitative Analysis for
Business, Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting and
Master Degree in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong.
He also holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting from
the Southern Cross University in Australia. He is a fellow member
of the Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, a fellow member
of the Institute of Financial Accountants, a chartered member
of the Chartered Institute for Securities and Investment and a
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Chau currently serves as the chairman, executive director, a
chairman of investment committee and a chairman of nomination
committee of Huge China Holdings Limited (listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange). From December 2008 to April 2015,
Mr. Chau was the chairman and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited (listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange).
Prior to joining UBA Investments Limited, he possesses over 18
years of experience in banking, finance and wealth management
and held senior positions at several international financial
institutions including Bank of America (Asia) Limited and Merrill
Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited. He joined the Group in February
2017.
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Mr. LEUNG Man Ho, aged 36, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group on 19 June 2017. He also
serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr. Leung
obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung currently serves as the
executive director of Investment Banking Department of Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited since 1 August 2017.
Mr. Leung was the senior vice president of Xinchen China Power
Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange)
from February 2014 to April 2017 and was principally responsible
for investor relations, capital markets and financial reporting
matters. Prior to joining Xichen China Power Holdings Limited, he
has extensive experience in the corporate finance and merger and
acquisition field and held senior positions at several famous US
and Chinese investment banks.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are retailing of footwear in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. During the Year, the Group commenced its
financial business in Hong Kong, including securities brokerage
services and money lending business. Subsequent to the
completion of the acquisition of China Consume Financial Holdings
Company Limited, the Group is engaged in the e-Commerce and
e-Payment business.

An analysis to the Group’s performance for the Year by segment
is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of the Company’s
and the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 are set out on pages
56 to 169 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended not to declare final dividend for the
Year (2017: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 61, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2017:
Nil).

DONATIONS
During the Year, the Group did not make charitable contributions
and other donations (2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 170 to 172 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the
Year.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital,
share options and convertible bonds during the Year are set out in
Note 27, 28 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP’S BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2018 are set out
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of
Board of Directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman)
Mr. KANG Jianming

Ms. CAl Jiaying

Mr. YIN Wansun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho (appointed on 19 June 2017)
Dr. HE Chengying (resigned on 1 April 2017)

Dr. HE Chengying resigned as independent non-executive Director
of the Company on the date as abovementioned. He confirmed
that he has no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to
the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, not
less than one-third of the Directors for the time being should
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. KANG Jianming and Mr. YIN Wansun, the
executive Directors of the Company and Ms. ZHAO Hong, an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM").

Change of Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of Directors required to be disclosed in this report as
follows:

Ms. ZHAO Hong, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 16 June 2017.

Mr. LEUNG Man Ho, an independent non-executive Director
was appointed as the executive director of Investment Banking
Department of Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
with effect from 1 August 2017.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration is disclosed in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors’ fees are subject
to shareholders’ approval at general meeting. The emoluments of
the Directors are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to their duties, responsibilities, experience and
performance, the Company’s performance, the prevailing market
conditions and after considering the market emoluments for
directors of other listed companies.

Biographical Details of Directors

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on
pages 34 to 36 of this annual report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares (“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and/or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

ogoooooooooooooooooon
goooooon

gzo1sg3fd3argpooooooooonon
Oo00oo0oo0mgXxvooroospoooooOo
gbooobmobooboobooboon
voooobbooodoooooooooooo
oooDmoDbD0OO00o0oo0ooDXvOo 352
goououoooooooooooooooo
ugooooooouooooooooooon
ugooouoooooooooooooooo
MoooboobooboOoXvooo oo o
goobooobooobbooboboon

The Company ooo
Number of shares held
gooooo
Number of
underlying
shares held Approximate
under equity % of the
derivatives Company’s
(Note 2) total issued
goooon share capital
Personal Family Corporate 0o00o0oo gooa
Name of Director Class of shares interests interests interests 000000 Total goooo
0ooo 0ooo gooa gooo oooo oooao 0o 0oooo %
ZHU Xiaojun Ordinary shares — — 513,300,002 — 513,300,002 71.67%
ooo 000 (Note 1)
oooin
KANG Jianming Ordinary shares/share options — — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%
ooo goooooo
CAl Jiaying Ordinary shares/share options — — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%
000 ooooooo
YIN Wansun Ordinary shares/share options — — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.84%
000 ooooooo
ZHAO Hong Ordinary shares/share options — — — 500,000 500,000 0.07%
0o ooooooo

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
ooooooooDoo 40



Report of Directors
Ooodong

Notes:

1. Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu") has beneficial interest in 513,300,002
Shares in the Company representing approximately 71.67% of entire
issued share capital of the Company held by China Consume Elderly
Care Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
wholly owned by Mr. Zhu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted or
transferred to such Directors upon the exercise of the options
granted to each of them under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 21 May 2007.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section headed “Long
Term Incentive Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable a Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares, or debentures, of the Company or other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company and its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she does not have any interest in any business
apart from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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LONG TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme 2007

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 21 May
2007 (“Share Option Scheme 2007”) for the purpose of providing
incentives to eligible participants to contribute to the Company
and enabling the Company to recruit high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further
options granted under the Share Option Scheme 2007 (“Post-IPO
Share Options”) will be issued but any options then outstanding
will continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Post-IPO Share Options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being 600,000,000
Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Post-IPO Share Options and any other share
options granted and to be granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant of the
Post-IPO Share Options (“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of
the number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date unless prior
approval of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting is
obtained.

The Post-IPO Share Options may be exercised during a period
as notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the
Grant Date and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year period.
Unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified in the
letter of grant, there is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price of the Post-IPO Share Options shall be
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of: (a)
the nominal value of the Shares; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the Grant Date; and (c) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the Grant Date.

On 28 November 2016, the Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 41,000,000 Shares at an exercise price of
HK$1.45 per Share were granted under the Share Option Scheme
2007. The closing price of the Shares on 28 November 2016 was
HK$1.45.
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The Post-IPO Share Options are granted in two tranches of: (A) a
total of 31,000,000 shares of options; and (B) a total of 10,000,000
shares of options shall vest in the grantees in accordance with the
timetable below:

0000000000000 0O00000
(A)O 0 31,000,0000 O O OO0 O(B)O O
10,000,0000 00 0000000000000
ooo

Tranches Exercisable period Percentage of Options to vest
oo ood oooDoDoDoDoDoooon
A 28 November 2017 — 27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted

20170 110 280 — 20210 110 270
28 November 2018 — 27 November 2021
20180 110 280 — 20210 110 270

B 28 November 2017 — 27 November 2021
20170 110 280 — 20210 110 270
28 November 2018 — 27 November 2021
20180 110 280 — 20210 110 270
28 November 2019 — 27 November 2021
20190 110 280 — 20210 110 270
28 November 2020 — 27 November 2021
20200 110 280 — 20210 110 270

000000000nns50%
Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
Oo0o0o0o0o0o000n0n 50%

Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
0000ddoooood 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
00000000000 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
00000000000 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
000000000 0D 25%

Details of movements of the Post-IPO Share Options during the
Year are as follows:

gododoobooouooooooogoogoooo
oo

No. of the Post-IPO Share Options

oboocoobooboon

Balance

Balance as at

as at 31 March

1 April 2017 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2018

020170 during during during during 020180

Name or category oooo 4010 the Year the Year the Year the Year 30310

of grantee ooooo 000 O000OOO00 OO00CO0O0 O0OO0oCocOoO0 Ooooocoo ooo
Directors ao

KANG Jianming oono 6,000,000 — — — — 6,000,000

CAl Jiaying oon 6,000,000 — — — — 6,000,000

YIN Wansun oon 6,000,000 — — — — 6,000,000

ZHAO Hong oo 500,000 — — — — 500,000

HE Chengying ooo 500,000 — — — 500,000 —
Employees oo

In aggregate oo 22,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 21,000,000

Total oo 41,000,000 - - - 1,500,000 39,500,000

During the Year, none of the Options was granted, exercised or
cancelled and a total of 1,500,000 Post-IPO Share Options have
lapsed during the Year. Accordingly, the outstanding of the Post-
IPO Share Options was 39,500,000 as at 31 March 2018.
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Share Option Scheme 2017

The Share Option Scheme 2007 was terminated and a new share
option scheme was approved by the shareholders at the general
meeting held on 13 January 2017. Also, the new share option
scheme was adopted by the Company on the even date (“Share
Option Scheme 2017”).

The Share Option Scheme 2017 shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no
further options granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme 2017 will be issued but any options then outstanding will
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme 2017 and any other option scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of the Shares in
issue as at the date of the approval of the Share Option Scheme
2017, being 646,190,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options and any other share options granted and
to be granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options (“Grant
Date”) shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue
as at the Grant Date unless prior approval of the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting is obtained.

The options may be exercised during the option period determined
and notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the
Grand Date but subject to the provisions for early termination of
the Share Option Scheme 2017. Unless otherwise determined by
the Board and specified in the letter of grant, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
2017 shall be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
but in any event will not be less than the highest of : (a) the
closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Grant
Date; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown
in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Grant Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Share on the Grant Date.

During the Year, no share options were granted by the Company
and there were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company), had the following interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

gooooooboooooooooboo

gz01803031000goooooooon
goooobooxvoozpogsooooooo
goboobob0obOobOobOXvdDo33en
goooobooooobobooomoooob
goooobooobobobooooogoo
gooooooogoo

Approximate

% of the
Number and Company’s
nature of total issued
Name of substantial interests held share capital
shareholder Capacity oooo oooooono
ogooooo oo 0000 0000000 %
China Consume Elderly Beneficial owner 513,300,002 71.67%
Care Holdings Limited ooooo
(Note)
0o0ooooooon
Omyooo
Note: ooo

China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, the registered owner of
513,300,002 Shares, was owned as to 100% (1 share) by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun,
an executive Director of the Company, in the capacity of beneficial owners
respectively.

All the interests disclosed above represents long positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2018, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of Part XV of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, all suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
9.4% of the Group’s total purchases and the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 40% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Our Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total turnover for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers
or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the transactions constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of which are set
out in section headed “Major and Connected Transaction” under
Management Discussion and Analysis on page 11 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 25 of this annual
report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of
this annual report.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Details of events after the date of statement of financial position
are set out in Note 42 to the consolidation financial statement.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being
in force for the benefits of any of the directors of the Company
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) or an associated
company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the
environmental and social sustainable development of the regions
where it operates. The Group takes into account of environmental
protection issues in developing and designing the new products.
It uses materials which have passed relevant physical and safety
tests and complied with the environmental laws and regulations.
The Group concerns about the responsibilities of its suppliers on
environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan (“Regions”)
as well as the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in such Regions. During the year ended 31 March
2018, as far as the Board and management are aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are set out in Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 7 of this report.
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AUDITOR

During the Year, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) retired as
auditors of the Company with effect from the conclusion of AGM
held on 29 September 2017. The Board and the audit committee
of the Board appointed BDO Limited as the new auditor of the
company following the retirement of PwC.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018 have been audited by BDO Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Xiaojun
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement
HRERERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
0020180 30310000

(Restated)
ooooo
2018 2017
Note HK$’°000 HK$'000
oo oo oon
(note 7)
ooorzo
Continuing operations oooooo
Revenue oo 5 346,157 561,557
Cost of sales oooo 6 (171,069) (272,996)
Gross profit 0o 175,088 288,561
Selling and distribution costs oopooooo 6 (251,757) (377,530)
Administrative expenses gooo 6 (103,728) (136,116)
Other gains/(losses), net dooo0muoom oo 8 30,552 (400)
Other income oooa 9 4,000 4,742
Operatingloss 1 EACR=NC U (145.845)  ~ (220,743)
Finance income oooo 11 9,701 15,823
Finance costs oooo 11 (69,502) (4,716)
Finance (costs)/income, net Doomooooo (59,801) 11,107
Share of loss of an associate o0o0ooooooooo 18 (1,634) —
Loss before income tax credit/ O000o00oomoom
(expense) oo (207,280) (209,636)
Income tax credit/(expense) gopboomooo 12 586 (116)
Loss for the year from continuing o0o0ooooooood
operations (206,694) (209,752)
Discontinued operations oooooo
Loss for the year from discontinued 0000000000000
operations 7 (2,689) (444)
Loss for the year ooooo (209,383) (210,196)
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Consolidated Income Statement
HRERERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
0020180 30310000

(Restated)
goooog
2018 2017
Note HK$’°000 HK$'000
oo ooo ooo
(note 7)
ooorzo
Attributable to: ooo
Equity holders of the Company odooogoood
From continuing operations gooooooo (206,076) (209,065)
From discontinued operations oooooood (2,600) (436)
Loss for the year attributable to oooooooooog
equity holders of the Company gooo (208,676) (209,501)
Non-controlling interests ooood
From continuing operations oooooooo (618) (687)
From discontinued operations gooooooo (89) (8)
Loss for the year attributable to oooooooooon
non-controlling interests oo (707) (695)
Loss for the year attributable to: gooooooo
Equity holders of the Company oooogooao (208,676) (209,501)
Non-controlling interests ooood (707) (695)
(209,383) (210,196)
Loss per share for loss from continuing 0000000000
and discontinued operations oopooooboogoo
attributable to equity holders of the gooogoood
Company (expressed in HK cents gpooooooog
per share)
— Basic — o 13 (29.14) (31.96)
— Diluted — oo 13 (29.14) (31.96)
Loss per share for loss from continuing OO0 O OO0 O0O00O0O0O
operations attributable to equity ooooooooa
holders of the Company (expressed goood
in HK cents per share) gooogoooog
— Basic — 0o 13 (28.77) (31.89)
— Diluted — 00 13 (28.77) (31.89)
Loss per share for loss from goobooooboo
discontinued operations attributable odopoooooooo
to equity holders of the Company opooog
(expressed in HK cents per share) gooooooog
— Basic — o 13 (0.37) (0.07)
— Diluted — 0o 13 (0.37) (0.07)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
gooooon

For the year ended 31 March 2018
0020180 30310000

(Restated)
ooooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
(note 7)
oooro
Loss for the year ooooo (209,383) (210,196)
Other comprehensive income gopbooo
Items that have been reclassified ormaybe 0000000000 OOO
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: goooooo
Revaluation gain of land and buildings gobooboboon —_ 88,737
Currency translation differences oooooo 14,729 (13,722)
Total items that have been reclassified ooooooooooo
or may be subsequently reclassified to oooooooooo
profit or loss 14,729 75,015
Total comprehensive income fortheyear 000000000 (194,654) (135,181)
Attributable to: oo0
Equity holders of the Company oooooooo
From continuing operations oooooooo (191,137) (134,227)
From discontinued operations oooooooo (2,509) (426)
Total comprehensive income for the year oopoooooooo
attributable to equity holders of the ooooooogo
Company (193,646) (134,653)
Non-controlling interests opooog
From continuing operations oooooooo (933) (521)
From discontinued operations oooooooo (75) 7
Total comprehensive income for the year ooooooooon
attributable to non-controlling interests oooooo (1,008) (528)
Total comprehensive income for the year ooooDoooooo
attributable to: gopoooo
Equity holders of the Company oooooooo (193,646) (134,653)
Non-controlling interests ooooo (1,008) (528)
(194,654) (135,181)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
oododnod

As at 31 March 2018
[120180] 30 3107

2018 2017
Note HK$°’000 HK$’000
oo oo ooo
ASSETS oo
Non-current assets ooogoo
Property, plant and equipment oopoooooag 15 7,958 113,534
Intangible assets oood 16 804 230,788
Investment in a joint venture goopoooooag 17 510 510
Interests in associate gooooood 18 6,530 7,227
Available-for-sale financial asset oooooood 19 6,248 —
Long-term deposits and prepayments OOO0O0O0O0O000O 23 11,363 27,354
e ik . 879413
Current assets oooo
Inventories oad 21 97,010 132,594
Trade receivables gooooad 22 38,323 39,751
Deposits, prepayments and other goooooog
receivables ooodgoo 23 136,014 32,014
Loan receivables oooag 24 130,873 —
Amount due from an associate ooooooog 18 3,662 —
Cash and cash equivalents gooooooog 25 53,514 32,839
459,396 237,198
Non-current assets classified as held O0OO00OO00O0O0O0O
for sale oooano 26 241,830 14,730
701,226 251,928
Total assets oOooa 734,639 631,341
EQUITY 00d
Capital and reserves attributableto D0 O00O0OOOOOOO0O
equity holders of the Company ooo
Share capital oo 27 71,619 71,619
Share premium oooo 27 673,503 673,503
Other reserve goog 29 120,451 184,265
Accumulated losses oooo (827,603) (713,302)
37,970 216,085
Non-controlling interests oo0o0oo (767) 241
Total equity oooo 37,203 216,326
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
oododnod

As at 31 March 2018
[120180] 30 3107

2018 2017
Note HK$°’000 HK$’000
oo ooo ooo
LIABILITIES od
Current liabilities oooo
Trade payables oopoogoo 30 102,737 79,576
Accruals and other payables oo0oDoooooooo 30 36,577 73,408
Borrowings oo 31 5,130 72,240
Obligation under finance lease gooooo 32 97 105
Convertible bonds ooooo 33 17,550 17,550
Current tax liabilities ooooog 1,077 973
163,168 243,852
Liabilities directly associated with ooboobobooboboo
non-current assets classified as ooooooooo
assets held for sale 26 52,408 —
. 2l 243,852
Non-current liabilities ooogoo
Obligation under finance lease gopoogo 32 129 225
Convertible bonds oooano 33 137,053 134,199
Corporate bond oooo 34 344,678 —
Deferred tax liabilities oooooo 20 — 36,739
481,860 171,163
Netcurrentassets =~ I ouooue 485650 = | 8,076
Total liabilities oooo 697,436 415,015
Total equity and liabilities ooooood 734,639 631,341
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 169 were gs5601690 000000000003 2018
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2018 and were 0e022000000000000000O
signed on its behalf
Zhu Xiaojun Cai Jiaying
ooo ooo
Director Director

oo oo
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
gooooon

For the year ended 31 March 2018
0020180 30310000

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

0ooooooooo
Non-
Share capital Other  Accumulated controlling
and premium reserves losses Sub-total interests ~ Total equity
0oooo
00 0ooo 0ooo 00 0oooo 0ooo
(note 27) (note 29)
o0ono2ii 0on290
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
oon ooo ooo oon oon ooo
Balance at 1 April 2016 0201604010000 640,697 95,593 (503,802) 232,489 (2,014) 230,475
Comprehensive income 0ooo
Loss for the year ooooo — - (209,501) (209,501) (695) (210,196)
Other comprehensive income oopooo
Currency translation differences oooooo — (13,889) - (13,889) 167 (13,722)
Revaluation on land and buildings (note 15) 00o000000Woo 150 — 88,737 - 88,737 — 88,737
Towl comprehenshve ncome 000000 . T e (eS| (1653 | (528) ___(135181)
Transactions with owners: gooooo
Share option scheme (note 28) 0000Woo 280 - 6,808 - 6,808 - 6,808
Issuance of shares (note 27) ooowono2n 104,425 — - 104,425 — 104,425
Issuance of convertible bonds (note 33) 000000W@on 330 — 7,075 - 7,075 — 7,075
Utilisation of statutory reserve ooooono - (59) - (59) - (59)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests 0000000 — - - - 2,137 2,137
Non-controlling interests arising on acquision 000000000000 — — - - 346 346
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries 00000000000 - - - - 300 300
Total ransactions with owners 0000000 las e oo o83 e
Balance at 31 March 2017 0201703031000
and 1 April 2017 201704010000 745,122 184,265 (713,302) 216,085 241 216,326
Comprehensive income 0ooo
Loss for the year 0oooo - - (208,676) (208,676) (707) (209,383)
Other comprehensive income oooooo
Currency translation differences goooono - 15,030 - 15,030 (301) 14,729
Reversal upon disposal of land and buildings 0000000000 - (94,375) 94,375 - - -
Total comprehensive income  pOoooo = (79,345) (114,301) (193,646) (1,008) (194,654)
Transactions with owners: 0ooooo
Share option scheme (note 28) 0000Wwon 280 - 15,531 - 15,531 - 15,531
Totaltensactions whthowners ~~0OOOOOOD = 531 = L2l = U
Balance at 31 March 2018 02018030310000 745,122 120,451 (827,603) 37,970 (767) 37,203
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

gooobod

For the year ended 31 March 2018
0020180 30310000

2018 2017
Note HK$’°000 HK$'000
oo ooo ooo
Cash flows from operating ooooooooo
activities
Cash used in operations oopooooo 35(a) (94,252) (128,242)
Interest paid oooo (1,920) (1,675)
Income tax refund ooooo — 119
Income tax paid oooood — (67)
Net cash used in operating activities 00000000000 (96,172) (129,865)
Cash flows from investing ooooooood
activities
Purchases of property, plant and oopoooooooo
equipment (6,215) (9,066)
Purchases of intangible assets ooooodo 16 (9,612) 17
Proceeds from disposal of property, oooDoooooooood
plant and equipment oo 127,992 463
Proceeds from disposal of assetsheld DO O0OOOO0OOOOOO
for sale oad 21,948 —
Interest received gogdad 45 63
Acquisition of subsidiaries netofcash OOO0OOO0OO0OOOOOO0O
acquired 37 — (83,359)
Investing in a joint venture gooogooog —_ (510)
Acquisition of available-for-sale gooooooood
financial assets (6,248) (4,219)
Capital increment of associates gpoooood (1,445) (132)
Refundable advance payment goooooo 23 (98,881) —
Loan to third parties gpooooo (121,217) —
Advance to associate gpoooood 18 (3,662) —
Net cash used in investing activities oO0ooooooood (97,295) (96,777)
Cash flows from financing ooooooooo
activities
Proceeds from borrowings oopooooo — 91,088
Repayment of borrowings oooo (67,110) (42,207)
Repayment of interest of convertible oooooooooo
bonds (17,550) (9,796)
Repayment of interest of corporate oooooooogd
bond (31,500) —
Repayment of expense issuance of dooodoooooog
convertible bonds — (900)
Capital injection from non-controlling OO0O0OOO
interests — 2,137
Capital elements of finance lease doooooooooo
payments (104) (276)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible 000000000000
bonds — 180,000
Proceeds from issuance of newbond OO0O0O0O0O0O0OO0O 329,000 —
Net cash generated from financing ooboooboooo
activities 212,736 220,046
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ooooooooog
and cash equivalents oomoomao 19,269 (6,596)
Cash and cash equivalents at the ooboooooooooo
beginning of the year 32,839 41,039
Exchange differences gooo 1,406 (1,604)
Cash and cash equivalents at the ooooooooooog
end of the year 25 53,514 32,839

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
Oooooooooao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

GENERAL INFORMATION
goon

Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the retailing of footwear in Hong Kong, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan, and
e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
10 November 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the
Cayman lIslands. The headquarter and principal place of
business in Hong Kong has been changed from 7th Floor,
Hope Sea Industrial Centre, 26 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong to Suite 708, 7th Floor, Champion
Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong since from 20
June 2018.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Seychelles.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless
otherwise stated, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board on 22
June 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
gogog

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
revaluation of land and buildings, certain financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and assets held for sale, which are carried at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

21

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
reported a net loss of HK$209,383,000 and had
a net cash outflow from operating activities of
HK$96,172,000. As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$53,514,000.
On 8 May 2017, the Group issued a two-year bond
with principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest
rate of 12% per annum for the first year and 13% per
annum for the second year. The bond is guaranteed
by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company, and is
pledged by the shares of China Investment S.p.A., a
company with 70% interest owned by Ms. CAI Jiaying,
the Director of the Company (“Milan Properties
Vendor”). The Group is required to redeem the bond at
its principal amount HK$350,000,000 in May 2019.

All the above events and conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, and therefore, that
the Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In view of these circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity of
the Group, and its available sources of financing in
assessing whether the Group has sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. The Directors
have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management covering a period of twelve
months from 31 March 2018. In order to improve the
Group’s financial position and alleviate the liquidity
pressure, the Directors have been implementing various
measures as follows:

(@) On 20 June 2018, an independent third party
granted a stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to
RMB200,000,000 to the Group, which is available
to drawn down on or after 21 June 2018. The
loan facility is guaranteed by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun,
the Chairman of the Company, and bears interest
at 18% per annum. The Directors believe that
this loan facility is available for draw down as
additional working capital of the Group, as and
when needed. The Directors are of the opinion
that this facility will be renewed upon expiry on
30 June 20109.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

21

Going concern basis (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e

®

During August 2017 and June 2018, the Group
signed two non-binding memorandum of
understanding (“MOUs”) with the potential buyers
to sold out the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business at a consideration, with reference to its
market value respectively.

On 15 June 2018, the Group planned to sold out
the financial services business at a consideration
with reference to its market value respectively.

In relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties,
which is detailed in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 June 2017, the Directors have
considered to withdraw the refundable advance
payment of HK$98,881,000 from the Milan
Properties Vendor to solve the liquidity problem of
the Group if necessary.

The Group is implementing various measures,
such as optimising its overall sales network by
relocating certain of its outlets, and controlling the
costing to improve the profit margin and operating
cashflows of its footwear retailing business.

The Group will also continue to seek for other
alternative financing and bank borrowings to
finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months from
31 March 2018. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

21

Going concern basis (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainty exists
as to whether the Directors are able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would
depend upon the Group’s ability to generate adequate
operating, investing and financing cash flows through
achieving the following plans:

(i)  Continuous compliance by the Group of the existing
terms and conditions of all the convertible bonds
and corporate bond issued by the Group as at
the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements such that these convertible bonds and
corporate bond will continue to be available to the
Group and be repaid in accordance with the agreed
repayment schedules;

(i) The independent third party will be able to
provide the standby evolving loan facilities of up
to RMB200,000,000 to the Group as and when
needed which will be renewable upon expiry on 30
June 2019;

(iii)  Successful negotiation with the potential buyers for
the disposal of the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business;

(iv) Successful negotiation with the potential buyer for
the disposal of the financial services business;

(v) The Group can withdraw the refundable advance
payment in connection with the purchase of the
Milan Properties to solve the liquidity problem of
the Group if necessary;

(vi) Successful implementation of measures to improve
the sales margin and operating cashflows of its
footwear retailing business; and

(vii) Obtaining additional sources of financing or bank
borrowings as and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to reduce
the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their net
realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.2 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 22 OO00O0O0OO0OOOOOOOOOO

The following new and amended standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 April 2017.

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred
HKAS 12 Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 12,
to HKFRSs 2014- Disclosure of Interests in
2016 Cycle Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the
additional disclosure presented in the note to the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair
value.

The adoption of the amendments has not impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously recognised deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.2 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 22 JJ0U0U0dDO0ODUODOoOoooooOoOaOo

(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
— Amendments to HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities”

The amendments issued under the annual improvement
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities” to clarify that the disclosure
requirements of HKFRS 12, other than the requirements
to disclose summarised financial information, also apply
to an entity’s interests in other entities classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no
impact on these financial statements.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective and have not been early adopted

by the Group

The following new and amended standards are
not effective for financial year beginning on 1 April
2017, and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements.

23 OOOOOOOOOOODDbDOOO
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after
oooooooo
oooooooog

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

201400 201600000000
opoooooo

Amendments to HKAS 40
goooooo4000000

Amendments to HKFRS 2
000000000200000

HKFRS 9
gopbooobogoen

Amendments to HKFRS 9
0gooO0oobooooeuononoag

HKFRS 15
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Amendments to HKFRS 15
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HKFRS 16
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
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000230

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

oooooooooion
00000000 2800000

Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

goo0ooogz28000000
0000000000000

Transfers of Investment Property
oooooo

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions
ooooooooooo

Financial instruments
ooog

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
oo0oooooooo

Revenue from contracts with customers
gooood

Clarification to HKFRS 15
gooOooooooilsoooa

Leases
00

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
O0oo0oooooo

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
oo0ooooooboooDod

Sale or contribution of assets between an

investor and its associate of joint venture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 OO0O0O0OO0OOOOOOOOOOOO

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impacts of these new and revised
HKFRSs on the financial statements of the Group in
the initial application and the expected impacts on the
Group’s financial performance and position are set out
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 0U00OO0O0OO0OO0OOOOODOOOOO

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 March 2018, the
Directors anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

o] Loanl receivables! carriedl atl amortised! costl arel

held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

ol Equityl securityl investmentsl classified] as!

available-for-sale financial asset carried at cost
less impairment classified as either FVTPL or
irrevocably elect to designate as FVTOCI (without
recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9. The Group
has not yet decided whether it will irrevocably
designate these investments as FVTOCI or
classify it as FVTPL. Either classification would
give rise to a change in accounting policy as
currently the Group recognises the fair value
changes of available-for-sale financial asset in
other comprehensive income until disposal or
impairment, when gains or losses are recycled
to profit or loss in accordance with the Group’s
policies. This change in policy will have no impact
on the Group’s net assets and total comprehensive
income but will impact on reported performance
amounts such as profit and earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 OO0O0OOO0OOOOOOOOOOO

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

o] Alll otherl financiall assets! andl financiall liabilities!

will continue to be measured on the same bases
as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application
of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost and other items that are
subject to the impairment provisions upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group. However, the Directors expect
the effect would not be significant.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

* Step 3: Determine the transaction price

» Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 DO00O0OO0OOO0OOOODOOOOO

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The Group mainly operates the retailing business during
the year, where the sale of goods are recognised when
a group entity sells a product to the customer. In the
view of the Directors, there is only one performance
obligation in the retailing, when applying HKFRS 15,
as there is no material after sale services and sales
returns. The Group has assessed the impact of HKFRS
15 and expects that application of the standard will
have no significant impact, when applied, on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, the
application of HKFRS 15 may result in more disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but 23 000O0O0OOO0OO0OODOODOOOOO

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of the Group in respect
of retail shops, offices, warehouses and furniture,
fixtures and equipment as at 31 March 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$37,595,000. The Directors do not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with
the current accounting policy would result in significant
impact on the Group’s financial performance but it is
expected that the Group has to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liabilities and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use assets,
and that certain portion of the future minimum lease
payments under the Group’s operating leases will be
required to be recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities.

The Group will also be required to remeasure the
lease liabilities upon the occurrence of certain events
(e.g. a change in the lease term) and recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liabilities as
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. In addition,
payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be presented within financing activities in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
ooowoo

2.3 New and amended standards have been issued but

are not effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the entity
shall determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
gooooood

3.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.1

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.1

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1) power over the investee, (2) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
(3) the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.3

3.4

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’'s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of
the investment is tested for impairment in the same way
as other non-financial assets.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

ol Jointlventures:IwherelthelGrouplhaslrightsitolonly!

the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

ol Jointl operations:I wherel thel Group! hasl bothl thel

rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.4

Joint arrangements (Continued)

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

ol Thelstructurelofitheljointlarrangement;

ol Thel legall forml ofl jointl arrangements! structured!
through a separate vehicle;

ol Thel contractuall terms! ofl thel jointl arrangement!
agreement; and

ol Anylotherlfactslandl circumstances! (includinglany!
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
in the same manner as investments in associates (i.e.
using the equity method).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.5

3.6

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on
the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see note 3.13), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.7 Property, plant and equipment 3.7 JOODOOODO

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are
stated at valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the end of the reporting period. Increases
in value arising on revaluation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of properties revaluation reserve.
Decreases in value arising on revaluation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of
the same property and thereafter recognised in profit
or loss. Any subsequent increases are recognised in
profit or loss up to the amount previously charged and
thereafter to the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Investment property is
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently
at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
chooses not to classify and account for these property
interests as investment property. During the last year
ended, the Group has reclassified its investment
property as asset held for sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.9

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Licence 25 years
Computer software 5 years
Trademark 5 years

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (see note 3.13).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.10 Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets. Regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of
a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets
are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

o] significantIfinancialldifficultylofitheldebtor;

o] al breach! ofl contract,! suchl asl al defaultl or!

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

il grantingl concessionltol al debtorl because! off

debtor’s financial difficulty;

i itt becomingl probablel thatl thel debtorl

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of
the loss is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued) o0 n0nomonO
(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued) (iii) 0000000

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be desighated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains
or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the
liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or
(iii) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings, obligation
under finance lease, the debt element of
convertible bonds and corporate bond issued
by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible instruments

Convertible instruments represents convertible
bonds issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into their respective items on
initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds
reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds reserve
until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be transferred to share capital. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry
dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Convertible instruments (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the

obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.11 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale when:

o[

o[

o

theylarelavailablelforlimmediatelsale;
managementlisicommittedltolalplanltolsell;

it isl unlikelyl thatl significantl changesl tol thel plant
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

anlactivel programmeltol locatel al buyerlhaslbeenl
initiated;

thelassetlorldisposallgrouplisibeingimarketedlatlal
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

al salellisl expectedltol completel withinl 120 months[
from the date of classification

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of:

o[

o

theirl carryingl amountl immediately! priorl tol being!l
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy; and

fairlvaluellesslcostsltolsell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-
current assets (including those in a disposal group) are
not depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year
are included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.12

3.13

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

o] Intangiblelassets;

ol property,l plantl andl equipmentl underl costl model;!

and

ol investments( inl subsidiaries,[ associatesl and! joint!

ventures (except for those classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 3.11)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.13

3.14

3.15

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or CGU
(see note 3.5), discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of three
months or less.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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3.15 Income tax (Continued) 35 00 oo

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.16 Foreign currency 3.16 U O

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign currency translation
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.17 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Short term employee benefit

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related
service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair value
of the services received is measured by reference
to the fair value of the options at the date of grant.
Such fair value is recognised in profit or loss over
the vesting period with a corresponding increase
in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account
by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting
period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on
the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is
made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.17 Employee benefits (Continued) 37 00000

(d) Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in
profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option
scheme which is determined to be a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction with employees.
An option pricing model is used to measure the
Group’s liability at grant date and subsequently
at the end of each reporting period, taking into
account the terms and conditions on which
the bonus is awarded and the extent to which
employees have rendered service. Movements
in the liability (other than cash payments) are
recognised in profit or loss.

3.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

(d)
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Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic 0o0o0Do0Oooooooooooon
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be go0ooooooodooooon
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a 0doooooooooooooon
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow 0do0ooooooooooooon
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, doooDooooooooooon
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the dooooooOoooooooon

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.19 Revenue recognition 319 0000

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, rebates,
returns and discounts and after eliminated sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods

The Group operates a chain of retail outlets for
selling footwear. Sale of goods are recognised
when a group entity sells a product to the
customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card.

(b) Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of footwear products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has
full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesale’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery does not occur until the
products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the wholesaler, and either
the wholesaler has accepted the products in
accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 319 000 oo
(c) Interest income (c) OOoo
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion 00o0oo0oo0oo0O0o0o0oooooon
basis using the effective interest method. ooooooo
(d) Licence fee and royalty income d) Oooooooooooon
Licence fee and royalty income is recognised on O0o0000oOoooonDoooo
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance oopoDodooooooooo

of the relevant agreements.

(e) Rental income (e) OOOO
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a O000o0o0ooooooooon
straight-line basis over the lease period. ooooo
3.20 Government grants 3.20 0000
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair ooooooooOo0ooooooon
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the ooooooooooObOOoOooo
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all oooooooo

attached conditions.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.21 Lease 3.21 00O

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability.
Lease payments are analysed between capital and
interest. The interest element is charged to profit or loss
over the period of the lease and is calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability.
The capital element reduces the balance owed to the
lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.21 Lease (Continued) 3.21 0Wyoo

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentive received from the
lessor and exclusive of any turnover rental payments
which are calculated by reference to a pre-determined
percentage of a tenant’'s monthly sales) are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Turnover rental payments are
recognised on an accrual basis.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment,
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in other short-term and other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.22 Related parties

(@)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

0]

(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
gooooooyoo

3.22 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(iiy children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
gogooooooo

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of any future management
determination of shop relocation or renovation.
Management will increase the depreciation charge
where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
ogooooooooyoo

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the years in which such estimates have
been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of the disposal group of e-Commerce
and e-Payment business property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
ogooooooooyoo

(e)

U]

Impairment of trade receivables and other
receivables

The policy of impairment assessment for receivables
of the Group is based on the current market condition
and the credit history of its customers, department
stores, counterparties and other debtors. Management
reassesses the provision at the end of each reporting
period.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets and
convertible bonds

The fair values of financial assets that are traded in
an active market are determined by the quoted market
prices. For fair values of financial assets not traded
in an active market, the methodologies, models,
assumptions used in determining the fair value of
financial assets not traded in an active market and
derivative financial instruments require judgement,
which are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments and other
financial liabilities (including embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds) that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using appropriate
valuation techniques and making assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at each reporting
date. The fair values of the embedded derivative
components of convertible bonds are determined using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model adjusted for specific
terms and conditions of the respective instruments.
Major inputs into the model include quoted market
prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
ogooooooooyoo

(9)

(h)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the Company. The plan comprises a
share option scheme. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options or shares is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options or shares granted as at
the date of grant: (i) including any market performance
conditions; (ii) excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets); and (iii)
including the impact of any non-vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options or shares that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired through business combinations and fair
value of consideration at the date of acquisition

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations, which requires the Group
to record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
their fair values on the date of acquisition. Significant
judgment and estimate are used to determine the
completion date and fair value of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The valuation involves
estimating future cash flows from the acquired business,
determining appropriate discount rates, asset lives and
other assumptions.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
goon

The Group is principally engaged in the retailing of footwear
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, and e-Commerce and
e-Payment business.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the
Group’s financial information to assess the performance and
allocate resources.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers difference
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

o[ Retailinglofifootwear
o] e-Commercelandle-Payment

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment loss
without allocation of administrative expenses, other gains,
other income and finance income/(costs), which is consistent
with that in the financial statements. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the Directors consider to dispose the
e-Commerce and e-Payment business. During August 2017
and June 2018, MOUs were signed for the potential disposal,
which led to discontinue the operation of e-Commerce
and e-Payment business. In accordance of HKFRS 5,
e-Commerce and e-Payment business for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017 were classified as discontinued
operation in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Segment assets mainly exclude loan receivables in respect of
the Group’s financial services business, refundable advance
payment in relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties
and deferred tax assets.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds, corporate bond and
obligation under finance lease.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are
based on the country in which the customer is located, and
total assets and capital expenditure are based on the country
where the assets are located.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
oo

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

uoowon
(a) Business and geographical segment (@) DOoOooDooo
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2018 0020180303100 00000
are as follows: ooooo
For the year ended 31 March 2018
0020180300000
Revenue oo
Segment loss 0ooo
Finance income oooo
Finance costs oooo
Share of loss of an associate 0ooooooooooo
Income tax credit 0oooo
Loss for the year 0oooo

Other segment items are as follows: 000000000

Capital expenditure 0ooo

Share of loss of associates 0oooooooo

Share option expenses goooo

Depreciation of property, plant gooooooo
and equipment ooo

Amortisation of intangible assets 0000000
Impairment of property, plant gooooooo

and equipment ooo
Gain on disposal of asset held goooooooo
for sale ooo
(Gain)flosses on disposal of oooooooooo

property, plant and equipment moomaoao
Write back of inventories, net goooooo
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ooowoo

(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) oooooowoo

ggz2017030310000000
goobooo

(a)

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2017
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

002017030310000
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
oooooo 00ooono
Retailing of footwear e-Commerce
0000 and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal  Unallocated e-Payment Total
oooo
oo 0o oo oo 0oo ooooa oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
oog ooo ooo oog oog oon ooo
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
oooon ooogn oogon oogoo ooooo ooogn
(note 7)
oooim
Revenue oo 119,368 434382 7,807 561,557 - - 561,557
Segment loss 0ooo (37,208) (51,354) (407) (88,969) (131,774) (444 (221,187)
Finance income gooo 15,823
Finance costs oooo (4,716)
Income tax expense ooooo (116)
Loss for the year goooo (210,196)
Other segment items are ooooooooo
as follows:
Capital expenditure gooo 3,223 6,277 4 9,574 - - 9,574
Share of loss of an associate 0ooooooooooo - - - - - (54) (54)
Share option expenses gooon - — — - 6,808 - 6,808
Share-based compensation ooooooooooo
expenses - - - - 9,034 - 9,034
Depreciation of property, plant ooooooooooo
and equipment 5530 6,099 89 11,718 - 63 11,781
Amortisation of intangible assets 0000000 1133 693 - 806 - - 806
Impairment of property, plantand ~ 00000000
equipment 0oo 871 234 - 1,105 - - 1,105
(Gain)floss on disposal of property, 00000000000
plant and equipment ooomon (323) 1,339 3 1,051 - - 1,051
Write back of inventories, net goooooo (1,381) (5,267) (21) (6,669) - - (6,669)

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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oo

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

uoowon
(a) Business and geographical segment (Continued) () DooooowWoo
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2018 are 02018030310 0000000
as follows: oooao
Segment assets oooo
Unallocated assets ooooo
Total assets oooo
Segment liabilities gooo
Unallocated liabilities ooooo
Total liabilities 0ooo
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ooowoo

(a)

(b)

Business and geographical segment (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2017 are

(@

ogoboooowoo

gz017o30310o0onoooon

as follows: gooo
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
0ooooo 0ooooo
Retailing of footwear e-Commerce
0ooo and
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Subtotal  e-Payment Total
0ooo
oo oo aad ad goooa oa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oon onn onn oon ooo ooo
(Restated)
ooooo
(note 7)
ooazn
Segment assets 0ooo 169,706 195,202 6,027 370,935 232,608 603,543
Unallocated assets ooooo 21,198
Total assets 0ooo 631,341
Segment liabilities 0ooo 126,854 90,207 7,001 224,152 861 225,013
Unallocated liabilities 0oooa 190,002
Total liabilities gooo 415,015
Specified non-current assets
opooooog
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Hong Kong oo 2,059 347,139
PRC 0oog 21,042 21,530
Taiwan oo 11 32
23,112 368,701

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, none of
the customers contributed 10% or more of the revenue
of the Group.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
gogoooooo

(Restated)
goooo
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
(note 7)
ooorzo
Continuing operations oooogo
Purchase of and changes in inventories oooooooog 176,822 279,665
Auditor’s remuneration ooooog
— Audit service —ogooo 1,650 2,550
— Non-audit service —Oooooo 44 91
Depreciation of property, plant gooooooog
and equipment ooo
— owned assets —Qooooo 7,104 11,574
— leased assets —ooooog 123 144
Impairment of property, plant and oopoooooooog
equipment 233 1,105
Amortisation of intangible assets gooboooon 589 806
Operating lease rental in respect of gooooooooon
leasehold land and buildings gooo
— minimum lease payments —ooogoog 17,480 29,477
— turnover rental expenses —O000oooooooo 105,547 170,436
Advertising and promotion expenses gopboooo 9,184 14,234
Write-back of inventories, net oooooood (5,753) (6,669)
Employee benefit expenses ooooodno 155,729 206,551
Other expenses oooo 57,802 76,678
Total cost of sales, selling and oooooooo
distribution costs and ooooooo
administrative expenses oooo 526,554 786,642
Expenses by nature of the Group has been presented in the 0000000000000 ooooon
consolidated income statement as follows: oooo
(Restated)
goooo
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ooo ooo
(note 7)
ooorzo
Cost of sales oooo 171,069 272,996
Selling and distribution costs ooooooo 251,757 377,530
Administrative expenses oooao 103,728 136,116
526,554 786,642
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7 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
gogooon

During August 2017 and June 2018, the Group entered
into MOUs to dispose of the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business. The disposal expected to be completed before
the end of the year 2018, the date on which the control
of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business passed to
the acquirer. The sales, results and cash flows of the
e-Commerce and e-Payment business were as follows:

02017080 02018060 000000
goboobooooboobooooboon
oboooooooozoisgooonon
goboooboboooboboobboon
gobooobooobobooobboob
gbobooobooooo b

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

ooo ooo

Other income oooo 228 5

Share of loss of an associate ooooDooDooooon (595) (54)

Expenses oo (2,322) (395)

Loss before tax expense oooooooo (2,689) (444)

Income tax expense ggooog = —
Loss for the year from discontinued ooooooooodo

operations ooo (2,689) (444)

Operating cash flows gooogo 610 11

Investing cash flows oooogo (18) —

Financing cash flows gopoooo — —

Total cash flows oooooo 592 11

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
e-Commerce and e-Payment business at the year ended
date are disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the purpose of presenting discontinued operations,
the comparative consolidated income statement and the
related notes have been re-presented as if the operations
discontinued during the year had been discontinued at the
beginning of the comparative period.
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10

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET
OoooMmOo0omon

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Gains on disposal of assets held forsale OOO0OOOOOOOOOO 7,217 —
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale dooooooooooog
financial assets — (2)
Fair value gain on revaluation of oooooooooo
assets held for sale goood — 830
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, ooooooooooo
plant and equipment oomooo 23,878 (1,051)
Net foreign exchange losses oooooo (543) a77)
30,552 (400)
OTHER INCOME
gooo
(Restated)
goooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
(note 7)
ooorzo
Licence fee and royalty income oobooooboooon 460 426
Government subsidies (note (i)) ooowoomo 1,882 1,879
Others oad 1,658 2,437
4,000 4,742
(i) Government subsidies represent incentives received from the (i) 00000D0oooooooooooog
PRC tax authority for operating in Waigaogiao Free Trade gboooooooooo
Zone in the PRC.
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
doooomooooooad
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Salaries, wages and bonuses gooooooo 117,202 161,904
Pension costs — defined contribution 00000 —oooooo
plans 20,352 24,926
Welfare and other expenses ooooooo 2,644 3,879
Share option expenses (note 28) oo0ooyon2z8n 15,531 6,808
Share based compensation expenses gopoooo
(note 27(b)) oonozzmb)a — 9,034
155,729 206,551
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
ogoobobmooooooooo

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by 000000 moooonomae2200
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 0383000 MdoooonDooogn
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of gOoe22c0MO00O0OO0OOOODOD

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) DOOoOoDODoDOoDOoOd
The remuneration of every director and the chief 0020180 0201703031000
executive for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 oo0ooobooooooooon
is set out below: oooo
For the year ended 31 March 2018: go0z20180 303100000
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s 0o0o00om@moboobOoooon
services as a director, whether of the Company or its 0Moooooooooon

subsidiary undertaking

Estimated
money
value
of other
benefit
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
googd
ooooo
ogd
OO OO 0oooan o0
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Name 0o oo ooo ooo ooo
Executive directors: opoood
Mr. Zhu Xiaojun opooood — 2,400 — 2,400
Mr. Chen Zhi (note c) oo0owooecedo = — — —
Mr. Kang Jianming ooooo — 1,696 2,590 4,286
Ms. Cai Jiaying (note d) 0000Woodo — 450 2,590 3,040
Mr. Yin Wansun (note e) oooowooed — — 2,590 2,590
Independent Non-executive 0000000 O
directors:
Ms. Zhao Hong (note h) 00o0oohno — 203 216 419
Dr. He Chengying (note i) oooowooio —_ —_ —_ —
Mr. Chau Wai Hing (note h) O 0000700 h — 180 — 180
Mr. Leung Man Ho (note b) 0OO0OO0OO7O0 b0 — 141 — 141
— 5,070 7,986 13,056
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
oooboobmooooooooo

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) DoOoOooDooooDooDWoo
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017: go0oz20170303100000
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s 0o0o00@moooooDoooon
services as a director, whether of the Company or its 0MoooDoooooDogo

subsidiary undertaking

Estimated
money
value of
other
benefit
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
ooooo
oooo
o0
ood OO oooan 00
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name 0o oono ooo oo ooo
Executive directors: ooooo
Mr. Zhu Xiaojun gooog — 2,400 — 2,400
Mr. Kang Jianming gooog — 1,696 1,102 2,798
Ms. Cai Jiaying (note d) oooo0oodo — — 1,102 1,102
Mr. Yin Wansun (note e) oooowooed — — 1,102 1,102
Mr. Wang Lingxiao (note f) O000WJOO O — 173 — 173
Non-executive director: oooooo
Mr. Chen Mingzhong oooowoogo
(Note g) — 500 — 500
Independent Non-executive O OOOO0OOO
directors:
Ms. Zhao Hong (note h) 000w ooho — 203 92 295
Dr. He Chengying (note i) oooowooig — 300 92 392
Mr. Chau Wai Hing (note h) O 0000700 h — 30 — 30
Mr. Chen Jianzhong (note j) 00007000 — 150 — 150
Mr. Hu Jinxing (note k) 0000myooko — 150 — 150
— 5,602 3,490 9,092
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
ogoobobmooooooooo

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Note a
Note b

Note ¢

Note d

Note e

Note f

Note g

Note h

Note i

Note j

Note k

Other benefits include share options.

Mr. Leung Man Ho was appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from
19 June 2017.

Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as an executive
director with effect from 15 May 2017 and resigned
with effect from 16 June 2017.

Ms. Cai Jiaying was appointed as executive
director with effect from 1 April 2016.

Mr. Yin Wansun was appointed as executive
director with effect from 19 May 2016.

Mr. Wang Lingxiao was resigned as executive
director with effect from 15 August 2016.

Mr. Chen Mingzhong was resigned as a non-
executive director with effect from 12 August 2016.
Ms. Zhao Hong and Mr. Chau Wai Hing were
appointed as an independent non-executive
directors with effect from 1 April 2016 and 1
February 2017 respectively.

Dr. He Chengying was appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect from
1 April 2016 and resigned with effect from 1 April
2017.

Mr. Chen Jianzhong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director with effect
from 1 April 2016 and resigned with effect from 12
August 2016.

Mr. Hu Jinxing was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 1 April 2016
and resigned with effect from 15 November 2016.
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oooDooooo0o0ao 116

() ODoOoooUOoooUOoDwWwWoo

O0a
O0Ob

O0c

ooOd

O0e

oof

O00g

OO0Oh

Oooi

00|

OO0k

oboooooDooooo
obooooooboooobooono
oo00oo00z2017060 190
ooogoo
goo0ooo2017050 150
oooooooooo?2oly
60160000
oooooooobooooo
00 0201604010 O O
oo
ooooooooo
000201605019
oo
goooooooooobooo
02016080 1500000
gooooobooobooooo
020160 80 120000
obooooooboooboo
oooooooooooo
20160 40 10 0O 20170 20
10o0o0oo
oooooo0ooDbOoo0oDbOoDn
0000 0201604010
ooooooonooezo170o
40100000
goooooooooooao
0000 0201604010
oooo0OoDbDOoDbozoled
g 1200000
gooboooboooooood
go0000201e040 100
ooooooon201e0 11
0150000

ooao
ooao



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
oooboobmooooooooo

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits related to define benefit plan for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

The Company issued CB-Il (as defined in note 33) in
August 2016 with personal guarantee obtained from
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun Chairman of the Company (note 33).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates
and connected entities of such directors (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
ogoobobmooooooooo

(g) Five highest paid individuals (90 OO0DOOOOOO
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest 000ooooooboooooon
in the Group during the year include 4 directors (2017: 4120170020 00000 0O DO O
2) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis gdb00d10)00D00o0oooon
presented in note 10(a). The emoluments payable to ooooooooooo

the remaining individuals are as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
oomn ooo

Basic salaries, housing allowances, oooooooooo
other allowances and benefits-in-kind opoooDoooog 1,560 6,894
Share options expenses ooooo 2,218 604
Share based compensation expense oooooo — 9,034
Contributions to pension plans oooooog 18 36
3,796 16,568

The emoluments fell within the following bands: ooooooooo

2018 2017

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001000
4,000,0000 0O 1 —

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001000
5,000,0000 0O = 1

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001000
5,500,0000 0 = 1

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001000
7,000,0000 0 = 1
1 3
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11 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET
gooooooobo

(Restated)
goooo
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
(note 7)
ooorzo
Finance income oooo
— Fair value gain on convertible bonds —Jodooooooooo — 13,521
— Interest income from bank deposits —Joooogoooog 45 63
— Interest income from loan —QO0ooooog 9,656 2,239
9,701 15,823
Finance costs oooo
— Fair value loss on convertible bonds —0oooooooooo (15,869) —
— Interest on convertible bonds —0oooooooo (4,535) (3,041)
— Interest on corporate bond —0ooooooog (47,178) —
— Interest on bank borrowings —ooooooo (1,805) (1,444)
— Interest expense — others —0ooo —oad (103) (216)
— Interest on obligation under finance —0oooooooog
lease (12) (15)
(69,502) (4,716)
Finance (costs)/income, net OMmoomooooo (59,801) 11,107
12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
ooooomooo
The amount of income tax credit/(expense) charged to the ogo0oooooooooooomao
consolidated income statement represents: omooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Current income tax ooood
— Hong Kong profits tax —ooonog — —
— PRC corporate income tax —ooooood — —
— Over provision in respect of prior —oooooooo
year — 119
— 119
Deferred income tax (note 20) oooooyoozono 586 (235)
586 (116)
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gooooogd

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)
O00o0o0omooOooo

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Hong
Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the Group has
no assessable profits for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax expense
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
consolidated entities as follows:

gooboboooooboobooooon
gooooooooooobon
20180 020170303100 000
goboboooooobooooon
gobood

gooboooooboooooon
gooboooooboooooon
gboboobobooobooobo

(Restated)
goooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
(note 7)
ooozo
Loss before income tax credit/(expense) O00000O0MO0OM
oo 207,280 209,636
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates of 00000 16.5%1 20170 0O
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5%0 0000 34,201 34,590
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries OO0 OO0OO0O0OO0OO0OOO
operating in other jurisdictions oooooooogo 7,956 9,570
Income not subject to tax ooooooao 7,613 4,570
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0000000000 (19,306) (4,529)
Deductible temporary differences not gobooboboon
recognised (2,689) (1,048)
Tax losses not recognised oO0ooooooog (27,189) (43,388)
Over-provision in respect of prior year oooooood —_ 119
Income tax credit/(expense) ooooomooo 586 (116)

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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13

14

LOSS PER SHARE
goon

For continuing and discontinued operations

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

gdoddoooooooo
(a) OO0

gooobooooooooboooooan
gooboboooooboooooon
gobooobobooooog

(Restated)

ooooo

2018 2017

(note 7)

ooogro
Loss from continuing operations ooDoDoooooon
attributable to equity holders of the oooooooog

Company (HK$'000) ooooo (206,076) (209,065)
Loss from discontinued operations ooDoDoooDooon
attributable to equity holders of the ooooooooo

Company (HK$'000) ooooo (2,600) (436)
Loss attributable to equity holders of the O OOOOO0OOOO

Company (HK$'000) cowoooo (208,676) (209,501)

Weighted average number of ordinary ooooooooog
shares in issue ('000) oowooo 716,190 655,560

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017
as the Company’s outstanding share options and
convertible bonds have an anti-dilutive effect on the

basic loss per share.

DIVIDEND
oo

The Board has recommended not to declare dividend for the

year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

121

(b) 00

gooboooooooooooon
ooooooooooooobooo
0000020180 020170 30 31
gooooooooobooooooo
googoo

gobooooboooe2o180 30
3102017 000
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15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

gogoooooo

Leasehold Furniture,
Land and improve- Motor fixturesand ~ Computer
buildings ments vehicles  equipment  equipment Total
goooo
gooob oooooo 0o 0oo oooa 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
Cost 0o
At 1 April 2016 0201604010 29,782 64,974 5,541 16,122 17,222 133,641
Additions oo — 7,430 641 1,299 187 9,557
Acquired through business gooooooooo
combinations (note 37) oonarng — 724 — 5 45 774
Disposals 0o — (18,634) (2,137) (163) (58) (20,992)
Revaluation surplus oooo 74,218 — — — — 74,218
Exchange differences oooo — (2,070) (31) (140) (383) (2,624)
At 31 March 2017 and 020170303100
1 April 2017 201704010 104,000 52,424 4,014 17,123 17,013 194,574
Additions 0o — 6,116 — 27 72 6,215
Disposals oo (104,000) (5,301) (1,814) (1,924) (39) (113,078)
Transfer to assets held for sale ooooooooao
(note 26) [on 260 — (742) — — — (742)
Exchange differences 0ooo — 3,436 59 313 724 4,532
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 — 55,933 2,259 15,539 17,770 91,501
Accumulated depreciation oooo
At 1 April 2016 020160 4010 11,348 57,013 5,341 15,265 15,422 104,389
Charge for the year oooo 3,171 7,069 152 528 861 11,781
Impairment 0o — 1,105 — — — 1,105
Eliminated on disposal ooooo — (17,124) (2,137) (161) (56) (19,478)
Revaluation surplus oooo (14,519) — — — — (14,519)
Exchange differences oooo — (1,790) (29) (115) (304) (2,238)
At 31 March 2017 and 020170303100
1 April 2017 201704010 — 46,273 3,327 15,517 15,923 81,040
Charge for the year goooo — 6,140 207 549 504 7,400
Impairment oo — 233 — — — 233
Eliminated on disposal oooon — (5,292) (1,814) (1,819) (39) (8,964)
Transfer to assets held for sale ooooooooao
(note 26) oo 2en — (236) — — — (236)
Exchange differences o0ooo — 3,110 55 255 650 4,070
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 — 50,228 1,775 14,502 17,038 83,543
Net book value oooo
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 — 5,705 484 1,037 732 7,958
At 31 March 2017 02017030310 104,000 6,151 687 1,606 1,090 113,534
Analysis of cost or valuation ooooooooo
At cost ooo — 6,151 687 1,606 1,090 9,534
At 2017 valuation 02017000 104,000 — — — — 104,000
104,000 6,151 687 1,606 1,090 113,534
Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
gooobobowoo

Impairment loss arises from the recoverable amount of the
leasehold improvement is lower than the carrying amount.
The recoverable amount has been determined based on
value-in-use calculation, which involves estimating the future
cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use
of the asset and applying the appropriate discount rate of
those future cash flows.

There are no bank borrowings secured on land and buildings
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$104,000,000) (note 31).

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued individually
on 31 March 2017 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, at an aggregate
open market value of HK$104,000,000. A revaluation surplus
totalling HK$88,737,000, resulting from the above valuations
has been credited to revaluation reserve. If the land and
building not stated at fair value, the amounts would be as
follows:

gooboboooooboobooooon
gooboooobboboooooon
gooboboooobbooooooon
gooboooooboooooon
goobooooobooooon
goboobobgad

020180303100 00 0 0O O
ooooooboobmzo1700
104,000,0000 00 00O 3107

gooobooboo0booZ2017030
sl00goooooooooonoog
gobogoboobooobobooon
104,000,000 00 OO0 DOODO
ooogogogooass,73z,oood 0O
gbooboboobobooooboon
gboobobobbobooooboon
ug

2017
HK$'000
ooo
Land and buildings opooog
Cost oo 29,782
Accumulated depreciation gooog (11,945)
17,837

As at 31 March 2018, property, plant and equipment were
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment.

123
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
gooobobowoo

(a) Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and () J0doddoooooooooao
equipment has been charged to the consolidated oopoodoooooodg
income statement as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Selling and distribution costs goooooo 6,246 7,544
Administrative expenses oOooa 1,154 4,237
7,400 11,781
(b) Property, plant and equipment held under finance () DODODODODODODODODDODODOODOOO
lease ad
Motor vehicles include the following amounts of which ooobooooooboooooon
the Group is a lessee under a finance lease: oopooooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Cost — capitalised finance lease 00 —0Oooooog
oo 491 942
Accumulated depreciation oooo (153) (435)
338 507
The Group leased a motor vehicle under non- 0o0o0oDooooooooooon
cancellable finance lease agreement. The lease term is 0o0oOoD0Oooo400000000
4 years and ownership of the asset lies with the Group. ooooooo

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

gooo
Computer
Goodwill Licence software Trademark Total
00 gooo oooo 00 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oon ooo ooo ooo ooo
Cost oo
At 1 April 2016 020160 40 10 — 318 18,491 69,566 88,375
Additions oo — — 17 — 17
Acquired through business ooooooog
combinations (note 37) owoo3z7o 36,153 193,629 — — 229,782
Exchange difference oooo — — (313) — (313)
At 31 March 2017 020170 30 310
and 1 April 2017 020170 40 10 36,153 193,947 18,195 69,566 317,861
Additions oo — — 9,612 — 9,612
Disposals oo — — (22) — (22)
Transfer to assets goopoooooo
held for sale (note 26) [on2ze6n (36,153) (193,629) (9,288) — (239,070)
Exchange difference gooo — — 548 — 548
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 — 318 19,045 69,566 88,929
Accumulated amortisation 0000
At 1 April 2016 020160 40 10 — 318 16,618 69,566 86,502
Charge for the year oooo — — 806 — 806
Exchange difference oooo — — (235) — (235)
At 31 March 2017 020170303100
and 1 April 2017 20170 40 10 — 318 17,189 69,566 87,073
Charge for the year oooo — — 589 — 589
Disposals oo — — (22) — (22)
Exchange difference oooo — — 485 — 485
At 31 March 2018 02018 0 30 310 — 318 18,241 69,566 88,125
Net book value ooono
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 — — 804 — 804
At 31 March 2017 020170 30310 36,153 193,629 1,006 — 230,788
Annual Report 2017/2018
125 2017/20180 0 0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
ooowoo

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

oooooboobooooooobobnb
g o

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

onon ooo

Selling and distribution costs ooooooo 60 83
Administrative expenses gooo 529 723
589 806

Impairment tests for goodwill

In February 2017, the Group acquired a provisional licence
through acquisition of China Consume Financial Holdings
Company Limited (“China Consume”). The licence is a
provisional licence issued by UnionPay International Co.,
Ltd (“UPI") which allows the holder to conduct payment
processing services for UPI credit cards in Hong Kong,
Japan, Korea, Italy and France. Management projected that
China Consume would commenced its acquiring business
from 2019 onwards in the above five regions.

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of China
Consume during the year ended 31 March 2017. Please refer
to note 37 for details.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of China Consume
is allocated to e-Commence and e-Payment business
segment. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a twenty five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the twenty five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below.

For the impairment test for goodwill, the key assumptions,
revenue growth rate, long term growth rate and discount rate
used in the value-in-use calculations in 2017 are disclosed
below.

Revenue growth rate 10% to 128%
Long term growth rate 3%
Discount rate 21.23%

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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16

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
uoowon

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

Management plans to review the business performance
based on business nature. It has identified retail of footwear
and e-Commerce and e-Payment as the main businesses for
future operation during last year. However, the e-Commerce
and e-Payment business were reclassified as a discontinued
operation as at 31 March 2018. Details are set out in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the fair value less costs
of disposal of the e-Commerce and e-Payment business is
approximately HK$193,000,000. These calculation use price
that would be received from selling the asset less any costs
required and needed to make the sale.

Revenue growth rate 3% to 128%
Long term growth rate 3%
Discount rate 21.50%

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
oooooooo

oooboowoo

gbbooobooobooobobooon
gobooooobooobooobboo
gobobooobobooobooobboo
gooboooooDbOoe20180 30310
goobooooobooobooobbooo
obooboDo2ed

gobz2o01803031000b00obooOoDOO
gobooobomobooobboooma
193,000, 0000 000 O00DOODOODO
goboboooboboooobooobobbooo

gooo

goood 3% 0 128%
gopood 3%
oono 21.50%

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

0oon oon

Share of net assets goooono 510 510

Nature of investment in material joint venture as at 31 March
2018:

% of

Place of interest held

Name of entity establishment indirectly

oood oooad 0o000oono %

Wealthy Trend International  Hong Kong 51%
Development Limited

oooooooooo oo 51%

127

gzoi1sg3031goooooooonoo

ogooo
Nature
of the Measurement  Principal
relationship method activity
ooooo oooo oooo
Joint venture Equity method Inactive
oooo ooag opooooo
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17 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
gooobobowoo

Summarised financial information of joint venture which is 000 o0oooDooooDmooon
consider immaterial: ooo
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$’000
onon ooo
Aggregate carrying amount of ooooooooooog
individually immaterial joint venture ooooooooooog
in the consolidated financial statements 510 510

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share oooooooogoooogd
of a joint venture:

— Profit or loss from continuing —O0ogoobooooo

operations — —
— Post-tax profit or loss from —dooooooooooo

discontinued operations — —
— Other comprehensive income —Oogooood — —
Total comprehensive income gooogoo — —
As at 31 March 2018, there are no significant contingent 020180303100 00000000OO
liabilities and capital commitments relating to the Group'’s 0o0000oooooooooooooo

interest in the joint venture.

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
gooooogd

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
oono ooo
Share of net assets oooooag 6,530 7,227
Loan to an associate (note(i)) 0ooooooowoo oo 3,662 —
10,192 7,227

Note (i) The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on O0@ 0000000000000 0O00

demand. od

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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18

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
gooobobowoo

In February 2017, the Group acquired 8.64% interest in
Shanghai New World Information Industry Company Limited
(“Shanghai New World Information”) through acquisition of
China Consume (note 37). It was recognised as available for
sales financial assets.

On 27 March 2017, China Consume’s interest in Shanghai
New World Information increased to 34.13%. Shanghai
New World Information became an associate of the Group.
The entire interest of the Group in Shanghai New World
Information was then re-measured at fair value on 27
March 2017 and the fair value loss of HK$2,000 has been
recognised in other losses in the consolidated income
statement.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
March 2018. The associates as listed below have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
indirectly through its subsidiaries by the Group.

Nature of interest in associates as at 31 March 2018:

gz017v0200b0 0000000000
goooobooooobooboooboon
MoooODDO0Omos.edwndmon
JrMo0oo0oboOobooboooDoonDg

gz201703027y00o0ogoooobDoOoO
ooobbooooos34a3tooonoo
gobobooobobooooboobbooon
oooOooooooDbOez017030 270
gooooooooobOooooezoo00
goboooobooooobooobobo

gooboboooozoiso303agbonon
uboboooboboobobooobooon
gbooooboobobooooobooboao
od

gzo180303100o0ooooooon
oo

Place of % of interest Nature of the Measurement  Principal
Name of entity establishment held indirectly relationship method activity
oooo oooao 0ooOd0dob% O00oOooo oooo oooad
Guangzhou Guoxin Guanfu ~ The PRC 43.35% Associate Equity method Settlement
Information Technology services of
Company Limited" acquiring
(“Guoxin Guanfu”) (note a) business
oooooooooo oo 4335% 0000 ooo goooooo
oooolmoooom 0o
oooan
Shanghai New World The PRC 35.13% Associate Equity method e-Commerce
Information® (note b)
0000000800 bO oo 35.13% 0000 ooo oooo
! English translation is for identification purpose only. L 0oo0O0oo0oOoooooo
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
gooobobowoo

a) Guoxin Guanfu is an unlisted limited liability company in a) 0OD000O0O0ODO0ODOoOODOOOOoOd
the PRC and there is no quoted market price available doDodoDoDoOoooooooog
for its shares.

b) As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of the b) 020180303100 000000O
group’s interest in Shanghai New World Information, Moo0oDo0Do0o00o0oooooomm
which is listed on the Shanghai Equity Exchange, Joooooooe,530,000000
was HK$6,530,000. The fair value of Shanghai New Jz20180303100 000000
World was HK$8,251,000 (2017: HK$6,645,000) based 00o00moooooooono 2.13
on its published price quotations at RMB2.13 (2017: 0201700 0O O O 2.300 00O OO
RMB2.30) as at 31 March 2018. 8,251,0000 [1120170 O 6,645,000

0O0m

Summarised financial information of immaterial associate: gooooooooooooooooo

2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$’000
ooo ooo
Aggregate carrying amount of ooooDoDoooooon
individually immaterial associates ooooooooooog
in the consolidated financial statements 6,530 7,227

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share doopoooooooog

of those associates: ooo

— Loss from continuing operations —0ooooooo (1,634) —
— Post-tax loss from discontinued —O0o0odopoooooooon

operations (595) (54)
— Other comprehensive income —ogooood — —
Total comprehensive income oooooog (2,229) (54)
As at 31 March 2018, there are no significant contingent 02018030310 0000000000O
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associate. 000d0oO0ooo0oOooOooooood
The Group was contracted to inject HK$637,000 (2017: 000 637,0000 0020170 0 576,0000
HK$576,000) as investment capital in interest in an associate 0dMmooooooooooooooog
in the future. oooooodo

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET
gogoooooo

2018 2017
ooo ooo
Unlisted equity securities, at cost ooooooooooo 6,248 —
One of the Group’s strategic investments is a 2.5% interest 000D00d0oD0D0oO0ooooooooon
in 000000000 0d. This company is not accounted oooo25%000000000000d
for on an equity method as the Group does not have the ooooDoooooooooooooog
power to participate in its operating and financial policies, 00Do0DoDoDooooooooooooon
evidenced by the lack of any direct or indirect involvement at oooooooooo
board level.
For the above available-for-sale financial asset that do not 00o0D0oDOoDoooooooooooon
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose 00o0o0ooDooDooooooooooo
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives jdooodoDoooooooooood
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such Joo0odoooodoDpooooooo
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less ooood
any identified impairment losses.
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
gooogao
The gross movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as oo0oDoooboooooog
follows:
Tax
Fair  depreciation
value gain allowance Total
ooo oooo
0o 0oo 00
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oon oon oon
As at 1 April 2016 020160 40 10 — 351 351
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 0oooowoo37g 36,153 — 36,153
Charged to the consolidated income statement oooooooooo — 235 235
As at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 0201703031000 20170 40 10 36,153 586 36,739
Transfer to liabilities directly allocated with 0oDooooooooon
non-current assets held for sale gooooon (36,153) — (36,153)
Credited to the consolidated income statement oooooooooon — (586) (586)
As at 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 — — —

Annual Report 2017/2018
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20

21

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
ooooooo

As at 31 March 2018, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised for the withholding tax as there is no distributable
profit for the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
The income tax liability is not recognised where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised
temporary differences of approximately HK$905,312,000
(2017: HK$894,253,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses are subject to approval by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and the PRC
tax authority respectively, approximately HK$492,367,000
(2017: HK$443,917,000) of unrecognised tax losses have no
expiry date and the remaining loss of HK$403,647,000 (2017:
HK$330,871,000) will expire in 5 years.

INVENTORIES
gd

Inventories represent merchandising stock.
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included

in cost of sales during the year amounted to HK$176,822,000
(2017: HK$279,665,000).

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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gbobooobooobobooboboon
gobooooboooon

gooobobooooooooobooboobon
0 0O 0O 0905,312,0000 1201700
894,253, 00000 D UDOOODOOOOODO
goboooboooboboobobboo
ooooooooood492,367,0000
(20170 0443,917,0000 0010000
goddooooboboo4os,647,0000
120170 0330,871,0000 0O OO0
500000

gooooooo
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES

gooogao

Retail sales are in cash, by credit cards or collected by 000o0doDoDO0o0oooooooooo
department stores on behalf of the Group. The department Joo0oodoooodobDooooooo
stores normally settle the proceeds to the Group within 2 0o200000000000004d

months from the date of sales.

Wholesales are generally on credit terms ranging from 0 to dooooooooooOs3odnO
30 days.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date at the 0oDooDooDoooooooooooog
end of reporting period is as follows: ooooooo
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo ooo
0 — 30 days 0—300 19,724 25,926
31 — 60 days 31 —600 8,827 6,558
61 — 90 days 61 — 900 2,527 2,069
Over 90 days 900 00O 7,812 5,710
38,890 40,263
Less: Provision for impairment of trade ogooogoooooooog
receivables (567) (512)
38,323 39,751
As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$18,072,000 020180303100 0O O O O O O
(2017: HK$13,362,000) were past due but not impaired. 18,072,0000 [1120170013,362,0000
These relate to a number of independent customers and 0Moodoooooooooooood
department stores for whom there is no recent history of Jod0ooooOooooooooooa
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as O0000o0oooooDooooooon
follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
oo ooo
1 — 30 days 1—300 8,300 6,109
31 — 60 days 31— 600 2,527 2,069
61 — 90 days 61 — 900 1,451 1,593
Over 90 days 90000 5,794 3,591
18,072 13,362
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
ooooowoo

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$567,000 020180303100 0O O O O O O
(2017: HK$512,000) were considered impaired and were 567,0000 1020170 0512,0000 O OO
provided in full. The individually impaired receivables mainly Jo00D0odoooooooooooooo
relate to department stores. An aging analysis of these 0o00D0doooooooooooDooon
receivables is as follows: oooooooooo
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$’000
onon ooo
Over 90 days 0000 567 512
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade JoDoo0O00o0ooooooooog

receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
At beginning of the year oono 512 1,118
Written-off on provision of trade oooooooood
receivables — (551)
Exchange differences oood 55 (55)
At end of the year ood 567 512
The creation and release of provision for impaired 000000o0o0oooooooooon
receivables have been included in the consolidated income O0D0000D0000D0Ooooooon
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account ooooooooooo
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not J0o000o0oO0oDO0oOoOoDoooooooo
include a provision for impairment of other receivables. gooDo0oooooooooooo
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date J0o00oo0oDoOooDooooooo
is the fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The 00000000 oooDoooDoon

Group did not hold any collateral as security. oooogoo

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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22

23

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
ooooooo

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated
in the following currencies:

gbboooboboooboooooboboooo

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

oo ooo

Hong Kong dollar o0 499 350
Renminbi ooag 36,870 38,558
New Taiwan dollar ooag 954 843
38,323 39,751

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates its
fair value.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
gooodoooooobooo

gobooobobooboboooboooo

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
ooo ooo
Non-current portion: oooooo
Deposits ood 4,052 10,712
Prepayments gooo 7,311 16,642
11,363 27,354
Current portion: oooog
Refundable advance payment (note (i)) 0o0oooowoo oo 98,881 —
Deposits oo 13,257 12,220
Prepayments gooo 17,111 6,144
Other receivables oooooo 4,040 9,471
Value-added tax recoverable ooodoo 2,725 4,179
136,014 32,014
147,377 59,368
Denominated in: gooooooad
Hong Kong dollar oo 28,603 32,268
Renminbi ooo 19,753 26,679
New Taiwan dollar 000 137 418
Euro ood 98,881 —
Others oo 3 3
147,377 59,368
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23

24

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
goooooooooooow oo

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does
not hold any collecteral as security. No written-off have been
made for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). No
impairment provision has been made for both years.

(i) In relation to the purchase of the Milan Properties, the
Directors have considered a construction plan provided
by the Milan Properties Vendor and considered
that other than the refundable advance payment
of Eurol10,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,892,000), there are no further payment due and
payable within the next twelve months from 31 March
2018. As the Directors is considering to withdraw such
refundable advance payment within 1 year, the amount
is classified under current portion.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

gboboooobooobooobbooon
goboboooobooobooobboo
ogooboobozo0180303100000
gobobotmzo1700b0@oboobobooo
gooogo

() DOooooOoDDODbDOoOoooobooo
gooboooooboooogoon
gooooooooio,200,00000
gooonoaegsozo000bMod
20180 3031000000000
goooboooobbooooooon
gooboooooobooooon
gboboooooooboobobob

oooo
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ooo oono
Loan receivables oooag 130,873 —

The Group’s loan receivables, which arise from Hong
Kong and PRC, which are denominated in both Hong Kong
dollar and Renminbi respectively. No impairment loss were
provided for the above balances.

Loan receivables are unsecured, bear fixed interest and
are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the Group’s
borrowers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of
the end of reporting period is the carrying value of the loan
receivables mentioned above.

The Group has no past due loan receivables as at the end of
the reporting period.
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24 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
aoowyoo
A maturity profile of the gross amount of loan receivables as O00o00o0oooDooDooooooooo
at the end of the reporting period, based on maturity date, is jooooooooooooooo
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$'000
oo oon
Within 1 year oono 130,873 —
1to 2 years oood = —
130,873 —
Certain loan receivables were subsequently renewed with 00o0o0o0oo0o0oooooooooooo
guarantee by an independent third party. oooogo
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
goooooooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
oo oon
Cash at banks and on hand goooooo 53,514 32,839
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooog 53,514 32,839

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position are denominated in the following currencies:

gobobooooboobooobooobobbooo

gobooooog

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

ooo oo

Hong Kong dollar o0 40,231 5,416
Renminbi ooao 11,687 24,873
United States dollar oad 194 124
Others oag 1,402 2,426
53,514 32,839

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in
Renminbi are placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

gobooooboooooboobboon
gobooobooobbooobboon
gooboooobooobooobboo
goooooon
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26

NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
goooobooobo

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

oo ooo

Investment properties (note i) ooo0Wwooio — 14,730
Disposal group (note ii) 000U ooiag 189,422 —
189,422 14,730

i)

At 31 March 2018, the Directors intended to dispose of
e-Commerce and e-Payment business and accordingly
the assets and liabilities relating to e-Commerce and
e-Payment business were classified as non-current
assets classified as held for sale and liability directly
associated with non-current assets classified as asset
held for sale, respectively. In August 2017 and June
2018, the Group signed two MOUs with the potential
buyers to sell out the e-Commerce and e-Payment
business at consideration with reference to its market
value, respectively.

An independent valuation of the China Consume,
which non-current asset classified as held for sale
was performed by the valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited to determine the fair value as at 31
March 2018 by an income approach of fair value less
costs of disposal valuation method.

The following table summarises the China Consume
corresponding assets and liabilities as at 31 March
2018.

At 31 March 2017, investment properties classified as
assets held for sale situated in Hong Kong with carrying
value of HK$14,730,000 were pledged as a security for
bank borrowings made available to the Group (note 31).

During the year, the investment properties were
disposed at a cash consideration of HK$22,000,000.

An independent valuation of investment properties
classified as assets held for sale was performed by the
valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited to determine
the fair value of assets held for sale as at 31 March
2017. The following table analyses assets held for sale
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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i)

gz01803031000oo0o0a0O
gobooooboobooooooon
goobooooobooooooobn
gooobooooooboooooon
gooboboooooboooooon
ooobooooobooon 20170
gipjz0180 6O OOIODOO
goboboooobbooooooon
gooboooobboobooooon
goood

goooboboooooboooooon
goobooooobooooon
goooooobboobooooon
goooboooooobooooon
20180 30 31000000

oo0000oO00DbDDO20180 3031
gobooobooo

gz20170303100 000000
00014,730,0000 000000
gooboooobboooooon
goooboobobobomoanb
3100

gooooooooobboan
22,000,00000000

goooooooooobooooon
goobobooooooboooooon
ooDoooooooooooDb 2017
Oo303100000oooooooo
goobooooobooooon
oo
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26 NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)
gooooooobbwoo

Fair value hierarchy ooooad

Fair value measurements
at 31 March 2017
02017030310 000000

Quoted
prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
oooo ogoo oo
ooooo ooo oooo
ooo oooo oooo
oo100 oo200 oo30no
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo
Description oo
Recurring fair value measurements 00000000
Investment properties classifiedas 00000000000
assets held for sale: ooooo
— Hong Kong — g — — 14,730

oobooobooobooobbooon
goooooobooobbooobboo
gboooboi1iobooz2b0030000
gooog

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There
were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation process of the Group gpopoooooo

goobooboboooz01y0 30310000
gooboooobobooobooobboo
omooobooboobOooDboezo12
gomobobooobooobomoboo
oooooooooo—boboomoo
goooooobooooobo

The fair value of the assets held for sale at 31 March 2017
were determined on the basis of a valuation by a qualified
valuer in accordance with the “HKIS Valuation Standards
on Properties (2012 Edition)” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, RICS Valuation — Professional
Standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and the International Valuation Standards (IVS).

As at 31 March 2017, the valuation of the commercial units
located in Hong Kong was determined by using the sale
comparison approach (Level 3 approach). Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most
significant unobservable input into this valuation approach is
price per square meter.
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26 NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)
gooooooobbwoo

Valuation process of the Group (Continued) ooooooomoo
2018 2017
HK$°’000 HK$’000
ooo ooo
Fair value less cost of disposal ooooooog 193,000 —
Non-current assets oooogao
Property, plant and equipment goooooog 506 —
Investment properties goog —_ 14,730
Intangible assets oooag 239,070 —
Investment in an associate oooooooood 645 —
Current-assets goog
Trade receivables, prepayment oooooooooooo
and other receivables oooodo 865 —
Cash and cash equivalents gooooooog 744 —
Non-current assets classifiedas held OO0OO0O0OO0O0OO0O
for sale ooooag 241,830 14,730
Current liabilities agooo
Trade and other payables ooobOobOoobogoooood (16,255) —
Deferred tax liabilities oooooo (36,153) —
Liabilities directly associated with dooooooooooo
non-current assets classified as 0ddd0odoOogoooaod
assets held for sale (52,408) —
Net assets held for sale ooooooooa 189,422 14,730
27 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
goooad
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
oooogd oooog oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
oon oon oon
Authorised oo
At 1 April 2016, 02016040100
31 March 2017, 20170 30 3100
1 April 2017 and 2017040 100
31 March 2018 20180 30 310 9,000,000,000 900,000 — 900,000
Issued and fully paid ooooodo
At 1 April 2016 02016040 10 641,360,000 64,136 576,561 640,697
Issuance of shares 0o00DWwooa
(note a and note b) ooobo 74,830,000 7,483 96,942 104,425
At 31 March 2017, 02017030 3100
1 April 2017 and 2017040100
31 March 2018 20180 30 310 716,190,000 71,619 673,503 745,122
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM (Continued)
oooowoo

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 10 January 2017, Silver Summit Ventures Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Golden Ahead International Limited
to acquire China Consume.

On 8 February 2017, all the conditions precedent set out in the
sale and purchase agreement had been fulfilled. Consequently,
China Consume has become a subsidiary of the Group with
effect from 8 February 2017.

The consideration amounted approximately HK$178,700,000,
which was settled in cash by HK$83,500,000 and by issuance
of 70,000,000 consideration shares of the Company to the
vendors which amounted approximately HK$95,200,000 as at
8 February 2017.

Detail of the transaction is disclosed in Note 37.

On 22 March 2016, Walker Group International Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Claes-Goeran Fride
Hoeglund, David Arellano, and Vicente Arellano (together
the “Vendors”) to acquire the entire issued share in Design
Management Hong Kong Limited (the “Target Company”) and
the employee services of certain key employee of the Target
Company. On 31 August 2016, all the conditions precedent
set out in the sale and purchase agreement had been fulfilled.
Consequently, Target Company has become a subsidiary of
the Group with effect from 31 August 2016.

The consideration amounted approximately HK$12,225,000,
which was settled in cash by HK$3,000,000 and by issuance
of 4,830,000 consideration shares of the Company to the
Vendors which amounted approximately HK$9,225,000 as at
31 August 2016. Out of the total consideration, approximately
HK$12,033,000 was recognised as consideration for employee
services, while the remaining portion of approximately
HK$192,000 were recognised as the consideration for the
acquisition of the Target Company.

As at the 31 August 2016, the net identified assets of the
Target Company amounted approximately HK$192,000, which
is approximates to the consideration paid.

The consideration shares for the employee services have a
vesting period of 2 years, of which HK$483,000 was credited
to share capital and the balance of HK$8,742,000 was credited
to share premium account.

Walker Shop Footwear Limited subsequently entered into an
agreement to accelerate the vesting period with the employees.
All remaining share-based payment has been vested. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, share-based compensation
expenses HK$9,034,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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(a)

(b)

gz2017rol1b1o00000ooO0o0oo
goboooooooomoooooad
oobooOOooOoo0oboO0ooooDooDog

gz201vg20800000oooODOOO
goooooooobooboooooooo
gpoooOo0oooobOoozo0170 2080
oooo

0 0O 0Oa1vs,700,0000 O O O O O
83,500,0000 O O OO OOODOOOO
70,000,0000 000000000 20170
20 8000 95,200,0000 000000

ooooooooos3rooOd

020160302200 0 OO0 MmO 0oOOd
00o0moooooooooooo
Claes-Goeran Fride HoeglundO David
Arellano Vicente Arellandd O (I O O
O0MO0oOoOO0O0O0OO0O0DOdOo Design
Management Hong Kong Limited O O
000 oo0oooooooooooog
0000000 O0oo0OD20160 80 31
gooooooooooooooooo
0000000 0020160803100
oopooooooooo

00000012,.2250000 00000
3,000,0000 O OO 0ODOO DO 4,830,000
gooo0o0oO0oomoz2o0160803100
092250000 00000000000
012,033,0000 00000000000
gooogi192o000000000000O
goooooo

020160803100 0000
goooooilez0000000
ood

gooao
oooo

ooooooooooob2000000
go4830000 0000000000
8,742,0000 00000000 OOO

Walker Shop Footwear Limitedd 0 0O O
goooooooooboobooboo
gobobooooooogoogno2o017o 3
0310000000000 0 9,034,000
gooobooOooobDogo
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28

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
gogooooooobooboo

A share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders’ written resolution of the
Company dated 21 May 2007. On 28 November 2016,
share options were granted to the Directors and to selected
employees under the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price determined by the Board of Directors
shall be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the grant date, which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. Options are conditional on the employee
completing 1 to 4 year’s service (the vesting period). The
options are exercisable starting 1 years from the grant date.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

goboooooboboooob0oog 2007
gsbz2z1go00ooooobooboao
MooOO0oO0o0Odoz201601102800
goobooobooobooobboo
gooogoo

gooboooobobooooboooboo
goOoboobo@OoOooooo™ooon
goooboooooobooobooon
goOmUobooooooooosooon
ooboooobooobooobboooo
(cgOOO0DOCOOOOO0OO0ODOOD1D4
gboomboomooboooboboon
goobobObi100b0o0obO0ob0ooooo
goboooboooooooooog

gogooooooooobbobbbbbob
gopooooog

Average
exercise price
in Hong Kong Options
dollar per share ('000)
ooooo ooog
opooooo oooo
At 1 April 2016 0201604010 — —
Granted on 28 November 2016 020160 110 2800 0O 1.45 41,000
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 020170 30 3100
20170 40 10 1.45 41,000
Lapsed ooo — (1,500)
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 1.45 39,500
Movement in the number of share option vested are as J0oooooooooooo
follows:
2018 2017
Number of share option vested ('000) OO0000O00O0UVOOO
At 1 April 04010 41,000 —
Granted ooo — 41,000
Lapsed ood (1,500) —
At 31 March 030 310 39,500 41,000

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
gogoooooobobbwoo

The share option outstanding under the Post-IPO share
option scheme at the end of the year have the following
vesting date, expiry date and exercise price:

Grant date

gooo

Vesting date

goog

Expiry date

gooo

gboboooboobobooobbooon
goooooobooooboooboboo

gooo

Exercise price
in Hong Kong
dollar per share
ogooogo
oooog

Number of share options
(’000) outstanding at

31 March

g303100ononog

oooomogoon

28 November 2016
20160 110 280
28 November 2016
20160 110 280
28 November 2016
20160 110 280
28 November 2016
20160 110 280

28 November 2017
20170 110 280
28 November 2018
20180 110 280
28 November 2019
20190 110 280
28 November 2020
20200 110 280

27 November 2021
20210 110 270
27 November 2021
20210 110 270
27 November 2021
20210 110 270
27 November 2021
20210 110 270

1.45

1.45

1.45

1.45

2018 2017
ooooo ooooo
17,500 18,000
17,500 18,000
2,250 2,500
2,250 2,500
39,500 41,000

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income
statement are based on valuation determined using binomial
lattice model. Share options granted were valued based on

goboboooboobooooboobbooon
goboooboooobooobboon
obobooboboooboao

the following assumptions:

Share price Annual
Option at the date Exercise  Expected risk-free Life of  Dividend
Date of grant value of grant price  volatility interest option yield
goo
oooo oo goo ooo
oooo ooooo ooooo pgooo oooo boooo oo ooo
28 November 2016 0.6610-0.8400 1.45 1.45 72.03% 1.11% 5 years 0.00%
20160 110 280 50

Expected volatility of the Group’s share price was based on
the historical volatility of the share as at the date of grant.

Share option expenses of HK$15,531,000 (2017:
HK$6,808,000) was recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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29 OTHER RESERVES

gooo
Foreign ~ Share-based
Merger Statutory currency compen-  Convertible
reserve reserves  translation sation bonds  Revaluation
(Note i) (Note ii) reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
oood ooog 0o oo goooo
oooim oaooing oooo oooo 0o oooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ono ono oon oon oon oon ono
(Note 33)
0o03sn
Balance at 1 April 2016 (restated) 0201604010000
0oooo 22,002 23,954 43,999 — — 5,638 95,593
Currency translation differences oooo - — (13,889) — - - (13,889)
Revaluation on land and buildings 000000Woo 150
(note 15) - — — — — 88,737 88,737
Share option scheme (note 28) 0o0o0owon 280 - — — 6,808 — - 6,808
Issuance of convertible bonds 0oooooo
(note 33) oon 330 - - - - 7,075 - 7,075
Utilisation of statutory reserves 0ooooo - (59) - — — - (59)
Balance at 31 March 2017 02017030310
and 1 April 2017 0201704010000 22,002 23,895 30,110 6,808 7,075 94,375 184,265
Currency translation differences oooo — — 15,030 — - - 15,030
Share option scheme (note 28) 0000Won 280 — — — 15,531 — — 15,531
Reversal upon disposal of landand 0000000
buildings ooo — — — — — (94,375) (94,375)
Balance at 31 March 2018 02018030310000 22,002 23,895 45,140 22,339 7,075 - 120,451
Notes: ooo
(i) The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference (i) gooooooDoOOoOooooooooo
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the goooooooooOoooogoooo
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the ooooooooopoooooooo
subsidiaries transferred to the Company in connection with the
reorganisation for the listing of the shares of the Company.
(i)  Companies which are established in the PRC are required (i) DDODDODOOODOOOO0DO0O0O0OOOODOOO

to make appropriations to certain statutory reserves from
profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distribution to equity holders.
The percentages to be appropriated to such statutory reserve
funds are determined according to the relevant regulations
in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the respective
companies. Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset
accumulated losses, to increase capital, or for special bonus
or collective welfare of employees. These statutory reserves
cannot be distributed to equity holders of the Company.

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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30 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

dooooooooooooooooo
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo ooo
Trade payables oopoogo 102,737 79,576
Accruals and other payables ooooooooooo 36,577 73,408
139,314 152,984

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as
follows:

gboboooobooobooobobooon

ggo

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$’'000

oon ooo

0 — 30 days 0— 300 12,323 26,351
31 — 60 days 31 —600 5,239 17,127
61 — 90 days 61 — 900 1,020 2,525
Over 90 days 900 00O 84,155 33,573
102,737 79,576

The amounts are repayable according to normal trade terms J000000o0o0ooooo3s3009000
from 30 to 90 days. ooo

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, accruals and
other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

goooooboobbobbbobboobo
ggoooooooogg

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

ooo oono

Hong Kong dollar oo 27,756 60,750
Renminbi ooo 110,367 90,207
New Taiwan dollar ooo 975 1,851
Others oo 216 176
139,314 152,984
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31 BORROWINGS

gd
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Short-term bank loan — secured gooooo —ooo 5,130 72,240
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in 000000o00oooooooog
the following currencies:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Hong Kong dollar oo — 67,000
New Taiwan dollar ooad 5,130 5,240
5,130 72,240
The bank loans are repayable in range of 30 days to 90 days gooO0oOoOopooboobooos3ocgoeonm
from the date of issuance. oono
At 31 March 2018, a bank loan of HK$5,130,000 (2017: 020180303100 0 0O O O 5,130,000
HK$5,240,000) was interest bearing at a fixed rate of 2.2% 0 20170 05,240,0000 0 00 O OO
(2017: 2.2%) per annum and secured by the Group’s standby 022%]20170022%00 000000
letter of credit amounting to US$1 million, a promissory note ggaiooo0,00000D0D0DOOOOOOO
of New Taiwan dollar 28 million co-made by the Group and OOoo0ooboOoo0ooooobo2s,000,000
the former non-controlling shareholder. goooooboooo
The fair value of the bank loan equals its carrying amount, gbooooooooooooooooo
as the impact of discounting is not significant due to its short uoooooooobooooooond
maturity. 0o

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
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32

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

gooogao
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Gross finance lease liabilities-minimum oooooooo —
lease payments: oopooooo
Within one year ooo 107 117
In the second to fifth year inclusive o000 muooooooo 143 251
250 368
Less: Future finance charges oooooooo (24) (38)
Present value of obligation under finance OO OOO0O0OO
lease 226 330
The present value of finance lease dooooooooodo
liabilities is as follows:
Within one year oono 97 105
In the second to fifth year inclusive gobooomuoooboon 129 225
Present value of obligation under finance 00000000
lease 226 330

The weighted average effective interest rates of the
obligation under finance lease was 2.5% (2017: 2.5%) per
annum .

Interest rates are fixed at contract date. The lease was on
a fixed repayment basis. The obligation under finance lease
is secured by the lessor's charge over the leased asset.
The carrying amount of the obligation under finance lease
approximates its fair value and is denominated in Hong Kong
dollar.

147

gbooboboobobooognn
2.5%] 20170 0 2.5%]

goooouoooooooobobobobbbb
gooooobooobbbbbobboobo
goooooooooobbobbbbbon
gooooooooogd

Annual Report 2017/2018
2017/20180 00O




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

33

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
gooon

On 5 July 2016, the Group issued a 6% convertible bonds
(“CB-I") at a par value of HK$30,000,000. The convertible
bonds mature four years from the issue date at their nominal
value of HK$30,000,000 or can be converted into the Group’s
shares at the bondholder’'s option at a conversion price of
HK$1.81 per share. The bondholder has right to redeem
the bonds after two years from the issue date at 108% of
HK$22,025,000 and the equity conversion component of
HK$7,075,000, net of transaction cost of HK$900,000 being
allocated proportionally to the liability and equity components,
were determined at issuance of the bond. The fair value of
the liability component included in long-term borrowings was
calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent non
convertible bond. The liability component is subsequently
states at amortised cost until extinguished on conversion
or maturity of the bond. The residual amount, representing
the value of the equity conversion component, is included in
shareholders’ equity in convertible bonds reserves.

On 24 August 2016, the Group issued a 10.5% convertible
bonds (“CB-Il") at a par value of HK$150,000,000. The
convertible bonds mature three years from the issue
date at their nominal value of HK$150,000,000 or can be
converted into the Group’s shares at the bondholder’s
option at a conversion price of HK$1.845 per share. Since
the conversion features of CB-Il fail the fixed-to fixed
requirement for equity classification, it was recognised as two
components, liabilities component and derivative component
with a conversion option derivative of the holders and a
redemption option derivative of the holders. The liability
component and derivative component are recognised initially
at the fair value of the compound financial instrument as
a whole. Subsequent to initial recognition, the compound
financial instrument is measured at fair value as a whole,
with changes in fair value presented to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise. CB-II is
under personal guarantee of Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the Chairman
of the Company.
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33 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
oooowoo

The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated Odo0DOo0ooooooooooon

statement of financial position are as follows: oo
Financial
liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities through
at amortised profit
costs or loss
(“CB-I”) (“CB-II”) Total
goooooo ogooooooao
goood ooogo
MDo0000I@D Mooooonm oo
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
oo ooo ooo
As at 1 April 2016 02016040 10 — — —
Fair value of convertible oopooooood
bond issued ooo 30,000 150,000 180,000
Arrangement fee ooo (900) — (900)
Equity component oooo (7,075) — (7,075)
Interest accretion gooo 3,041 — 3,041
Fair value gain recognised oooooooo — (13,521) (13,521)
Interest paid oooo (907) (8,889) (9,796)
As at 31 March 2017 and 020170 30 310
1 April 2017 0201704010 24,159 127,590 151,749
Interest accretion oooao 4,535 — 4,535
Fair value loss recognised ooooboooo — 15,869 15,869
Interest paid goog (1,800) (15,750) (17,550)
As at 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 26,894 127,709 154,603
Representing: gooogo 2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Current portion goodad 17,550 17,550
Non-Current portion ooood 137,053 134,199
154,603 151,749
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35

NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
gogooooboooo

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax expense to () DO0ODO0oO0oUOoOoOooOooDOO
cash used in operations goood
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
oomn oomo
Loss before income tax expense gooooooo (207,280) (209,636)
Loss before tax credit/(expense) oooooooooooog
from discontinued operations ooomoo (2,689) (444)
Adjustments for: ooooooooood
— Depreciation of property, plant —fJooooooog
and equipment o0 7,400 11,781
— Impairment of property, plant —Joooooooog
and equipment o0 233 1,105
— Net write-back of inventories —0oooooo (5,753) (6,669)
— Amortisation of intangible —oooooood
assets 589 806
— (Gain)/loss on disposal —0ogooooooog
of property, plant and Mmoomod
equipment (23,878) 1,051
— Loss on disposal of available —0ogooooooog
for sale financial assets ooo — 2
— Gain on disposal of assets —O0O0ooboooooog
held for sale (7,217) —
— Fair value gain on revaluation —O0ogoooooooo
of assets held for sale goood — (830)
— Finance income —oooo (9,701) (15,823)
— Finance expense —0oooo 69,502 4,716
— Share option expenses —ogoooo 15,531 6,808
— Share-based compensation —oooood
expenses — 9,034
— Share of loss in an associate —0o0oooooooo
oo 1,634 54
Changes in working capital: opoooooog
— Inventories —0oag 51,356 88,327
— Trade receivables —ogooooo 5,882 29,734
— Deposits, prepayments —Ooooooooo
and other receivables oooooo 14,547 21,610
— Trade payables —ooooog 17,514 (20,011)
— Accruals and other payables —0oooooooooo (21,922) (49,857)
Cash used in operations opooooog (94,252) (128,242)
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35 NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
ogooooooooyoo

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () DOOODODODODOOOOOO

activities
Obligation
Bank under finance  Convertible Corporate
borrowing lease bonds bond
(note 31) (note 32) (note 33) (note 34) Total
oooo 0Oo0oooo ooooo oooo
oop3in oooasazo oono33n ooo 340 00
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo oono ooo ooo ooo
At 1 April 2017 0201704010 72,240 330 151,749 — 224,319
Changes fromcash flow: D0O0O0000O0O
Issuance of corporate oooooo
bond — — — 329,000 329,000
Repayment of bank oooooo
borrowings (67,110) — — — (67,110)
Interest paid oooo — — (17,550) (31,500) (49,050)
Capital elements of ooooooo
finance lease payment ooono — (104) — — (104)
Total changes from ooooooood
financing cash flows oog (67,110) (104) (17,550) 297,500 212,736
Accrued interest oooo (1,805) — — — (1,805)
Interest expense oooo 1,805 — 4,535 47,178 53,518
Changes in fair value oooooo — — 15,869 — 15,869
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 5,130 226 154,603 344,678 504,637
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36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
gooobogoooobood

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) ODoOooooooo
As at 31 March
030310
2018 2017
Note HK$’°000 HK$'000
oo ooo ooo
ASSETS oo
Non-current asset ooooad
Interests in subsidiaries goooboooo 305,998 378,820
T 805,998 .. 378,820
Current assets oooo
Deposits, prepayments and gopooooodg
other receivables ooogooo 110,853 216
Amounts due from subsidiaries goooboooo — 2,167
Cash and cash equivalents goooooooa 1,844 789
112,697 3,172
Total assets ooodd 418,695 381,992
EQUITY oo
Capital and reserves oooooood
attributable to equity holders opoooooog
of the Company
Share capital oo 71,619 71,619
Share premium oOooa 673,503 673,503
Convertible bonds reserve ooooooo 36(b) 7,075 7,075
Share-based compensation gooooo
reserve 36(b) 22,339 6,808
Accumulated losses oooo 36(b) (857,235) (533,267)
Totalequity .1 e S (82699) 225,138
LIABILITIES oo
Current liabilities oooo
Accruals and other payables ooooooooa
oo 2,113 4,505
Convertible bonds ooooo 17,550 17,550
T RNl 22,055
Non-current liabilities ooooo
Convertible bonds ooooog 137,053 134,199
Corporate bond oooao 344,678 —
481,731 134,199
Total liabilities oooo 501,394 156,254
Total equity and liabilities ooooooo 418,695 381,992
The financial statements were approved by the Board OOooooe2018060220000
of Directors on 22 June 2018 and were signed on its oooooooooooo
behalf.
Zhu Xiaojun Cai Jiaying
ooo ooo
Director Director
oo oo
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36

37

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
goboboooobobobooowoo

(b) Reserves movement of the Company

() 0ODDDOOOOO

Convertible Share-based
bonds compensation  Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
gooooooo oooooo gooo oo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo oon ooo ooo
At 1 April 2016 020160 40 10 — — (298,385) (298,385)
Loss for the year ooooo — — (234,882) (234,882)
Issuance of convertible bonds ooooooo 7,075 — — 7,075
Share option scheme (Note 28) 0000w oozs8o — 6,808 — 6,808
At 31 March 2017 and 020170303100
1 April 2017 20170 40 10 7,075 6,808 (533,267) (519,384)
Loss for the year ooooo — — (323,968) (323,968)
Share option scheme (note 28) 0000mMoo2zs8o — 15,531 — 15,531
At 31 March 2018 020180 30 310 7,075 22,339 (857,235) (827,821)

BUSINESS COMBINATION DURING PRIOR YEAR
goooooooo

In February 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in China Consume through a 100% owned subsidiary for a
total consideration of HK$178,700,000, which consist of a
cash consideration of HK$83,500,000 and issue of share
of the Company with fair value of HK$95,200,000 as at 8
February 2017 and obtained control of China Consume which
principally engages in e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

The intangible assets acquired through acquisition of
China Consume includes a provisional licence issued by
UnionPay International Co, Ltd which allows the holder to
conduct payment processing services for UPI payments
in Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, ltaly and France. The
management expects the Group could expand its business
scope to e-Commerce and e-Payment business through the
acquisition of China Consume. The goodwill of approximately
HK$36,153,000 arising from the acquisition is attributable
to the anticipated profitability and net cash inflows of the
acquired business.
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37

BUSINESS COMBINATION DURING PRIOR YEAR

(Continued)
ogooooooooyoo

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for acquisition of China Consume, the fair value of assets

acquired and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

gboboooboboobooooobooon
goboobobooboboooboboooo

HK$’000
ooo
Consideration: ooo
— Cash consideration —[Qoooo 83,500
— Equity instruments —[Qoooo 95,200
Total consideration transferred gooooooo 178,700
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets jooooooooooooon
acquired and liabilities assumed: oooodo
Property, plant and equipment oooooood 774
Intangible assets oooo 193,629
Trade receivables, prepayment and other oopooodoDooooogo
receivables googd 35,543
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets odoooooooooog 1,793
Investment in an associates ooooooog 1,192
Investment in assets held for sale ooooooooooo 3,360
Cash and cash equivalents oopooooooa 141
Trade and other payables ooooooooooog (6,169)
Deferred tax liabilities gooooo (36,153)
Total identifiable net assets gooooooo 194,110
Amount due to the Group, net oooooooooon (51,217)
Non-controlling interests goood (346)
Goodwill oo 36,153

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$540,000 have
been charged to administrative expense in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, China Consume
contributed nil revenue and had loss of HK$944,000 included
in the consolidated income statement of the Group.

Had China Consume been consolidated from 1 April 2016,
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2017 would show proforma revenue of approximately
HK$561,557,000 and loss of approximately HK$213,424,000.
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

ogoooon
38.1 Financial risk factors 381 000000
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial JoooooooDoooOooooO
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and 0Moo0oooooooomao
interest rate risk), credit risk, price risk and liquidity 00000000 ooooooon
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme 00o0o0oO0oo0ooobooooooon
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets oooooooooooooooan
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the 00oo0o0oo0ooooooooooon
Group'’s financial performance. oo
Management regularly manages the financial risks of ooooooDoooOoooooon
the Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial 00000 o0ooDoooooooo
structure and the current operations of the Group, 000o00ooo0oobOooooooo
no major hedging activities are undertaken by oodo
management.
(a) Foreign currency risk (a OO000
The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and O000ooooooooooo
the PRC. Transactions are mainly conducted in 0o0o0oD0o0o0ooooooog
the functional currency of each group entity and o0oD0o0ooooooood
therefore the foreign currency risk is considered to
be minimal.
The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies oo00oo0oo0oooooooog
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign dooopooooooooog
exchange control promulgated by the PRC oo
government.
(b) Interest rate risk (b) OOOO
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily O00o0oooooooo0oo
from loan receivables (Note 24) and borrowings 00 mM0g22400 0O DO O
(Note 31). Income, which both are carried at fixed 3l 000o0o0oooooo
interest rate. At 31 March 2018, the Group has no 020180303100 0000
cash flow interest-rate risk as there are no loan gooooooooooooa
receivables and borrowings which bear floating jooooooooooooo
interest rates. The following table details the oooooooooooood
interest rate profile of the Group at the end of the oooooo
reporting period.
2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate HK$’000 interest rate HK$'000
goooao oono ooooo ooo
Fixed rate borrowings ooono
Borrowings oo 2.2% 5,130 2.2% 5,240
Less: Loan receivables oooooo 10.36% (130,873) — —
Total net borrowings ooooo (125,743) 5,240
At 31 March 2017, borrowings denominated in 0201703031000 0003
HK dollar were carried at variable rate. If interest go0o0DoOoOooooooooa
rate of borrowings denominated in HK dollars had ooooooooooood
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all gs00000bDOoOoOoOoOoaO
other variables constant, the Group's loss after gooobooooooooo
tax and accumulated losses would have been Oo0oooboOooOoooooao
approximately HK$28,000 higher/lower. 28,0000 00

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
ooooooooDoo 156



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gooooogd

38

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ooooooo

38.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, as well as credit exposures to trade
and other receivables. Management has policies
in place to monitor the exposures to these credit
risks on an on-going basis. Deposits are placed
with major and sizeable banks with high credit
ratings and management expects no losses from
non-performing banks.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 60 days from the invoice date.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have no
significant defaults in the past.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that wholesale sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

The Group’s credit risk also attributable to its
loan receivables. The Group’s policy is that all
the borrowers who wish to obtain loans from the
Group are subject to management review. The
Group also obtain the guarantee support directly
or indirectly to cover its risk associates with loans
receivables.

The Group also makes deposits (current and
non-current) for rental of certain of its retail
sales point with the relevant landlords. Including
the refundable advance payment for the Milan
Properties, management does not expect any
loss arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting dates is the fair value of each class
of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables.
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

oooooryoo
38.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 381 00000 OO

(d) Liquidity risk (d 000000

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
reported a net loss of HK$209,383,000 (2017:
HK$210,196,000) and had a net cash outflow
from operating activities of HK$96,172,000 (2017:
HK$129,865,000). As at 31 March 2018, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$53,514,000. On 8 May 2017, the Group
issued a two-year bond with principal amount
of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12% per
annum for the first year and 13% per annum for
the second year. The bond is guaranteed by Mr.
ZHU Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company and is
pledged by the shares of China Investment S.p.A.
The Group would redeem the bond at its principal
amount HK$350,000,000 in May 2019.

In view of these advance factors, a series of
remedial measures to mitigate the liquidity
pressure have been taken to improve its
financial and liquidity position of the Group as a
whole. Details are disclosed in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

oooooyoog
38.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 381 00000 VOO

ooooomoo

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the end of reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The
accounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d)

goobooooooobooo
goobbbooooooboog
goobobbooooobooo
goobbboooooobooboog
gooobooooooboobooo
gooog

Between
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
100 10050 oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oo oo oon
As at 31 March 2018: 020180
303100
Other payables, accruals and oooooog
other liabilities ooooooo
oo 36,687 143 36,830
Trade payables oooooo 102,737 — 102,737
Borrowings oo 5,138 — 5,138
Corporate bond oooo 44,625 361,375 406,000
Convertible bonds ooooo 17,550 187,957 205,507
206,737 549,475 756,212
As at 31 March 2017: 020170
303100
Other payables, accruals and oopooooo
other liabilities ooooooo
0o 73,525 251 73,776
Trade payables oooooo 79,576 — 79,576
Borrowings oo 72,302 — 72,302
Convertible bonds oooogo 17,550 229,903 247,453
242,953 230,154 473,107
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ooooooo

38.2 Capital risk management 382000000
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to 0O00000O00oooOoOoooo
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 000000000000o0o0ooo
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders 0000000 D0oDOoOoooooo
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an 0000000 0oOoOooDoooon

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 000000O0o0oOooooooono
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 000000o0DoDoOoOoooooo
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new 000000000oooooooo
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. oooog

The Group’s capital structure is being reviewed annually dooo0o0oO0O0oooooooooo
to ensure these objectives are to be achieved. oooooono

During the Year, the Group’s strategy was to maintain 00000000 oDOoooooono
a gearing ratio within 70% (2017: 40%). The gearing 000000 70%20170040%0
ratios at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were as follows: 00020180 020170303100

goooooooog

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$’'000

ooo ooo

Borrowings (Note 31) Owooas1o 5,130 72,240

Corporate bond (Note 34) oo0oyono 340 344,678 —

Convertible bonds (Note 33) ooooyoo330 154,603 151,749

Obligation under finance lease 00000 oos20

(Note 32) 226 330

Total debts good 504,637 224,319

Total assets oooo 734,639 631,341

Gearing ratio gooooo 68.7% 35.5%
Note: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on the total pO0O 00000000 30310000

debts divided by total assets as at 31 March. doDooooooooo
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ooooooo

38.3 Fair value estimation 38300000
The table below analyses the Group’s financial goobooooooboobooooon
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2018 goooobooboooogoono2o0180 3
by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to gs3loooobooooooooon
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into goooboooooooobooooon
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: oo
ol Quoted! pricesl (unadjusted)! inl activel markets! forl . gooooboooooobo
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (moooobooil1o0
o[ Inputsl otherl thanl quoted! pricesl included? withinl . glioooobooboooogo
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, gdboooooooooooao
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that goobooomooomoo
is, derived from prices) (level 2). gobobooommmo200
o[ Inputsl forlthelassetl orlliability’ thatl arel notlbased! . gooboboooooooboog
on observable market data (that is, unobservable go0ododoooomoooao
inputs) (level 3). gobooooosom
Please refer to Note 15 and Note 26 for details of the goobooooobooooon
land and building and assets held for sale measured at goooboooobobooooooon
fair value respectively. goi1s5000 2ed
The following table presents the Group’s financial goobooooobooooon
liabilities that are measured at fair value. goo
As at 31 March 2018 020180 30 310
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
o110 020 030 00
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ooo ooo ooo ooo
Liabilities oo

Convertible bonds (CB-Il) ooooo
gooooong
— financial liabilities at fair — 000000

value through profit or gopboooo
loss — — 127,709 127,709
Total financial liabilities oopooooo
measured at fair value googodaao — — 127,709 127,709
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ooooooo

38.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 383 00 00yOO
As at 31 March 2017 02017030 310
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
010 020 03d oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ooo oon oon oon
Liabilities oo

Convertible bonds (CB-ll) goood
oo0ooooug
— financial liabilities at fair — OO O000O0O

value through profit or ooooooo
loss — — 127,590 127,590

Total financial liabilities goooogoo

measured at fair value oooogo — — 127,590 127,590
The valuation techniques used for the valuation of fair 0000D000O0ooooOoooon
value of convertible bonds and the movement of the 0000000000ooOoOoooon
convertible bonds recognised as financial liabilities 00000000 0oooooooo
at fair value through profit or loss during the year are O0DO0Oooo 330
disclosed in Note 33.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in 0000O0o0ooooooooon
active markets is based on quoted market prices at 0000000 0oDOoOoooooaon
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active 0ooo0o0ooooooooooo
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available 0oooooDooooooooao
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, oo00o0ooooooooooooon
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those 00000000000 OoOooon
prices represent actual and regularly occurring 0000000 o0ooooooon
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. These oo0oogi10d
instruments are included in level 1.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not 00000000 ooooDooon
traded in an active market is determined by using 000o0oooooOooooooa
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 00000000 0ooooooao
maximise the use of observable market data where it is 000000000000 o0oon
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific 000000 0o0ooDOooooooo
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value Jdoo0o0ooooooooooon
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included oooogz20d
in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on 00000000oooooooo
observable market data, the instrument is included in goooooooooooooag
level 3. oad
The carrying values of trade and other receivables Oo000o0o0ooO0oooOooooo
and payables are a reasonable approximation of their gooooooooDOooOOoOooooO
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for 00o00o0Oo0ooOoooDooooo
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the 0000000 ooooooooo
future contractual cash flows at the current market 0Jo0o0o0o0o0o0oooooogoon
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar 000000000000 o0oOooon
financial instruments. There were no transfers between 01000200030000000

level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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39 COMMITMENTS

0o
(a) Capital commitments (@) OOOO
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no 020180 020170303100 0O O
capital commitments. oopoooooog
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) ODOOOOO
The future aggregate minimum lease payments and 00ooooooooooooon
turnover rental expenses under non-cancellable doodoooooooooooon
operating leases in respect of retail shops, offices, 0dooooodooooooooon
warehouses and furniture, fixtures and equipment are doooooooooog
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$'000
oo oon
Land and buildings goood
— No later than 1 year — 100 28,463 49,175
— Later than 1 year and no later —1000o00o
than 5 years 50 7,674 24,789
— Later than 5 years —Qoos0o — 359
e SR 74323
Furniture, fixtures and equipment gooooooo
— No later than 1 year — 100 333 230
— Later than 1 year and no later —1000o0oo
than 5 years 50 1,125 1,458
1,458 1,688
37,595 76,011
Leases are negotiated for varying terms, escalation 0000O0ob0OO0ooooooooon
clauses and renewal options. The operating lease 0000O0ob0OO0o0obOOoooooon
rentals of certain outlets are based on the higher of a 0000oO0o0oO0oOooOoooooon
minimum guaranteed rental and a sales level based 00000 moooooooooon
rental. The above operating lease commitments include 0o0000o0oOoooooooooan
commitments for fixed rent only. ooo
In addition, rental payable in some cases include Jodooooooooooooaon
additional rent, calculated according to gross revenue, 0000000oo0DOmooooon
in excess of the fixed rent. oo
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40 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
gogoooooo

(a) Key management compensation (@) ODo0OoDoOoooOoo
During the year, the Group had the following significant gooboooooboooooooboo
transactions with related parties: oooo
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
ooo ooo
Key management compensation opooooooo
Basic salaries, housing allowances, gooooooood
other allowances and benefits-in-kind OOOO0O0O0O0O0O0O 6,912 12,235
Share options expenses ooogoo 11,682 4,997
Share based compensation expenses 000000 — 6,063
Contributions to pension plans ooooooo 18 44
18,612 23,339
Note: ooo
Key management includes directors and certain senior 000oooUoooOoooooooooo
management who have important roles in making operational Jod0oooooooooooog

and financial decisions.

(b) Year-end balances (b) ODOODO
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$'000
oon ooo
Amount due from an associate oooooooooo
— Prepayment —0goono 7,311 6,603
— Loan to an associate —0o0oooooo 3,662 —
Amount due from a related party ooooooooon
— Refundable advance payment —0DboDbooog 98,881 —
Amount due to a related party ooooooooon
— Other payables —Ooogoogo 626 3,010
Note: ooo
Refundable advance payment related to the purchase of the voooooobooooooooood
Milan Properties from a related party (Note 23). Other payables ooz ooooooooaagn
000000000000 00D0O000

with related parties are repayable on demand, unsecured and
non-interest bearing.
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1

SUBSIDIARIES
goon

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

March 2018 and 2017:

Name of company

Place of incorporation
and kind of
legal entity

Principal activities and
place of operation

Particulars of
issued share capital

0oobz20180 0201703031000
goooooboog

Interest held

oooo g00oo00o0ob0O0o00O0b0 OOobooooboo oooooono gooo
2018 2017

Directly held:

oooon

Carlyon Investment Holdings The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 10,000 ordinary share of ~ 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each

oooooooooboo ooooboooooboao goooooa 1000000010000

oa

Genius Earn Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 90 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each

gooooooo ooooooooooo ooooooo oUOd0100bO0ooboOo

Silver Summit Ventures The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1  100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong

oooooooo goooOooooooo oooooono 10001000000

Indirectly held:

oooon

Artemis Footwear Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Retailing of footwear in 10,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%

company Taiwan shares

00oobooooon ooooooo goooooo 10,000,0000 000

Ascent Pride Investments The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1  100% 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong

oooooooo ooooooooobo goooooa 10001000000

Asia Glory Investment Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong

oooooooo ooooooo ooooooo 10000

Billion International Trading  The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$1,000,000 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Company owned enterprise limited the PRC
Limited liability company

o0ooomoomo go0o00oO0obOOo0oOOob OOobooooo 1,000,000 0
oa

Carlyon Asset Management Hong Kong, limited liability =~ Asset management in 5,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%

Limited
goooooooooo

company
ooooooo

Hong Kong
goooooa
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1

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ooowoo

Name of company

Place of incorporation
and kind of
legal entity

Principal activities and
place of operation

Particulars of
issued share capital

Interest held

ooood oooooobDOo00oDO0 OobhOOoobOooo gooooooo googd
2018 2017
Carlyon Capital Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Inactive 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company
0oo0oooooo goopoooo oopooo 100,0000 000
Carlyon Exchange Limited®  Hong Kong, limited liability  Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100% —
company
ooooooooo® gopoooo oopooo 10,0000 000
Carlyon Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Money lending in 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
oooooDooo opooooo ooooo 100,0000 000
Carlyon Securities Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Securities dealing in 10,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
company Hong Kong shares
0opDooDoon opooooo goopooooo 10,000,0000 000
China Consume Financial Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding, 60,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Holdings Company Limited ~ company e-Commerce and shares
e-Payment business in
Hong Kong
gopDooobDooooDo oopoooo oooooDoooo 60,000,0000 000
oopDooDoooo
Citiward Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
oooooo oopoooao oopoooo 10000
Design Management Hong ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 300,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Kong Limited* company Hong Kong
opooooo oopoooo 300,0000 000
Million Fortune Star Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Corporate secretary 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company
oopoooo opoooooo oooo 10000
Senet International Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability = Holding of trademarks in 10 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
oopooooo ooooooo opooooo 00000
Silver Focus International Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%

Limited
oooooooo

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
Oooooooooao

company
ooooooo

Hong Kong
goooooo
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gooooogd

1

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ooowoo

Name of company
oooao

Place of incorporation
and kind of

legal entity
oooooooooboon

Principal activities and
place of operation
gobooooooono

Particulars of
issued share capital
gooooao

Interest held

Smart Sky International
(Beijing) Limited'

goooommoomo
oo

Smart Trend Trading
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

0oo0Mmoomoon

Smarter Trading (Beijing)
Company Limited

goboooomooo

Surplus Jet Investments
Limited

oooooooo

Treble Berry Limited

Triple Juicy Limited

Trunari Enterprises
Company Limited

ooooooooo

Vervestone Limited

The PRC, wholly foreign-
owned enterprise limited
liability company

oooobooOooooooo

The PRC, wholly foreign-
owned enterprise, limited
liability company

oooooooooboooo

The PRC, wholly foreign-
owned enterprise, limited
liability company

goooOooOooooooo

The British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
oooobooooooboa

The United Kingdom, limited
liability company
ooooooo

The United Kingdom, limited
liability company
oooooono

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

goooooo

The United Kingdom, limited

liability company
goooooa

Trading of footwear in
the PRC

goooooa

Retailing of footwear in
the PRC

ooooooo

Retailing of
footwear in the PRC

ooooooo

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

gobooooa

Inactive

gooooo

Holding of trademarks

oooo

Holding of trademarks
and properties in Hong
Kong

o0oobooooon

Investment holding in the

United Kingdom
ooooooo

167

HK$2,800,000

2,800,0000 0

HK$41,000,000

41,000,0000 O

HK$40,000,000

40,000,0000 O

1 ordinary share of
USs$1
10001000000

1 ordinary share of
£1 each
10001000000

1,000 ordinary shares of
£1 each

0000001000
ooo

22,000,000 ordinary
shares

22,000,0000000

2,000 ordinary shares of
£1 each

20000001000
ooo

gooa
2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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1

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ooowoo

Place of incorporation

and kind of Principal activities and Particulars of
Name of company legal entity place of operation issued share capital Interest held
gooa ooobooooobOoob OoobOoboooboo gooooao gooo
2018 2017
Walker Group (Shanghai) The PRC, wholly foreign- Retailing of footwear in ~ US$200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise, limited the PRC
liability company
o0oooomooma godoobo0ooboooboOob bOOoboooo 200,0000 0
oo
Walker Group China Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
ooomoomooo goooooo oooobooo 00000
Walker Group International ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
ooomoomooo ooooooo ooooooo 00000
Walker International Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Wholesaling of footwear 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Footwear Limited company
oooooooooo ooooooo agooao 1000000
Walker Shop Footwear Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding and 500,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited company retailing of footwear in ~ shares
Hong Kong
goooooa 00doobboooboono 500,000,0000000
000oO00o0o0oooooo The PRC, wholly foreign- Product design and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
owned enterprise limited technology in PRC
liability company
oooobo0obo0ob0oob ODobboOooboooo 000 1,000,0000
0o0o0oooooo The PRC, wholly foreign- Trading of footwear in HK$1,500,000 100% 100%
owned enterprise limited the PRC
liability company
o0ooooboobo0oob OobOooboo 1,500,0000 O
oooo0oOoooooo The PRC, foreign and Information technology =~ RMB100,000,000 85% 85%
domestic owned enterprise
limited liability company
ooobooooobooo ogooo 000 100,000,0000
gooa
oooooooooo The PRC, foreign-owned Sales and marketing RMB16,000,000 85% 85%

Vestate Group Holdings Limited
Oooooooooao

enterprise limited liability
company
goooOooooooo

oooooo

168

000 16,000,0000



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HREREEERERERERN

1

42

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ooowoo

The English names of certain companies represent the best
effort by the management of the Group in translating their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

The company name of the company has changed to Carlyon
Immigration Consulting Limited on 7 June 2018 and disposed
to an independent third party on 7 June 2018.

The company name of the company has changed to Carlyon
Properties Limited on 17 May 2018 and disposed to an
independent third party on 6 June 2018.

As legal requirement, all companies established in the PRC
and Taiwan have adopted 31 December as their accounting
date for statutory reporting purpose. All other companies
have adopted 31 March as their financial year end date.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING PERIOD
ggooooo

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of e-Commerce and e-Payment business

During June 2018, the Group signed non-binding MOUs
with the potential buyers to sell out the e-Commerce
and e-Payment business at a consideration, with
reference to its market value respectively.

Disposal of financial services business

After financial year end, the Group signed MOU with
potential buyer to sell the financial services business at
a market consideration.

A stand-by revolving loan facilities granted by
independent third party

On 20 June 2018, an independent third party
granted a stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to
RMB200,000,000 to the Group, which is available to
drawn down on or after 21 June 2018. The loan facility
is guaranteed by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the Chairman of the
Company, and bears interest at 18% per annum.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
Odooomo

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

ogpoood
For the year ended 31 March
oo3o31oonoo
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
goooo gooogo goooo goooo
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo oon oon ooo
Continuing operations oooooo
Revenue 0o 346,157 561,557 840,658 1,090,668 1,299,154
Cost of sales oooo (171,069) (272,996) (357,342) (473,751) (616,940)
Gross profit 00 175,088 288,561 483,316 616,917 682,214
Operating expenses oooo (355,485) (513,646) (642,913) (719,836) (909,209)
Other gains/(losses), net 00oDomoomoo 30,552 (400) (394) 8,262 (162)
Other income oooo 4,000 4,742 4,277 7,035 12,029
Operating loss oooo (145,845) (220,743) (155,714) (87,622) (215,128)
Finance (costs)/income, net 0ooomooooa (59,801) 11,107 (524) (489) (332)
Share of loss of an associate opoooooooao
oo (1,634) — — — —
Loss before ooooooomoon
income tax credit/ ooao
(expense) (207,280) (209,636) (156,238) (88,111) (215,460)
Income tax credit/(expense) ooooomooo 586 (116) (656) (2,415) (13,902)
Loss for the year ooooa (206,694) (209,752) (156,894) (90,526) (229,362)
Continuing operations opoooon
Attributable to: ooao
Equity holders of the Company 00000000 (206,076) (209,065) (155,892) (89,546) (227,241)
Non-controlling interests ooooa (618) (687) (1,002) (980) (2,121)
(206,694) (209,752) (156,894) (90,526) (229,362)
Dividends oo — — — — —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

goooooo
As at 31 March
030310
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
ooooo ooooa ooooao
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
ASSETS oo
Non-current assets ooooo
Investment in a joint venture ooopooooo 510 510 — — —
Investment in an associate gooooooo 6,530 7,227 — — —
Property, plant and equipment OOO0OO0OO0ODO 7,958 113,534 29,252 34,942 40,386
Investment properties oooo — — — — 17,140
Intangible assets oood 804 230,788 1,873 2,570 4,605
Deferred income tax assets ooooogoo — — — 6,091 9,547
Available-for-sale financial oooooooo
assets 6,248 — — — —
Long-term deposits and oOoobOoooono
prepayments 11,363 27,354 12,588 10,995 14,781
33,413 379,413 43,713 54,598 86,459
Current assets oooo
Inventories oag 97,010 132,594 223,446 242,388 320,393
Trade receivables gooooo 38,323 39,751 72,939 115,024 119,636
Deposits, prepayments and 0o0ooooooooo
other receivables oooo 136,014 32,014 27,081 40,044 50,043
Tax recoverable goooao — — — — —
Loan receivables oooo 130,873 — — — —
Amount due from an associate 00000000 3,662 — — — —
Cash and cash equivalents 0O0ooOooooo 53,514 32,839 41,039 94,939 107,044
459,396 237,198 364,505 492,395 597,116
Non-current assets classifiedas 000000000
held for sales goooa 241,830 14,730 13,900 26,660 —
701,226 251,928 378,405 519,055 597,116
LIABILITIES oo
Current liabilities oooo
Trade payables oooooo (102,737) (79,576) (104,026) (101,396) (128,095)
Accruals and other payables ooooooooo
oo (36,577) (73,408) (41,129) (53,193) (71,854)
Borrowings oo (5,130) (72,240) (44,920) (25,040) (5,260)
Obligation under finance lease O0O0OO00O0O (97) (105) (106) (106) (106)
Current tax liabilities oooooo (1,077) (973) (1,102) (1,001) (3,108)
Convertible bonds goooao (17,550) (17,550) — — —
(163,168) (243,852) (191,283) (180,736) (208,423)
Liability directly associated opoobooooooo
with non-current assets goooooooo
classified as assets held for ooo
sales (52,408) — — — —

(215,576)  (243,852)  (191,283)  (180,736)  (208,423)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
goooood

As at 31 March
030310
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
opooo ooooao ooooao

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
onon ooo ooo ooo ooo
Net current assets oooooo 485,650 8,076 187,122 338,319 388,693
Total assets less current 0pooooooo
Mliabilities L 519,063 387.489 230835 392917 475152
Non-current liabilities ooooo
Convertible bonds ooooao (137,053) (134,199) — — —
Obligation under finance lease 0O0OO00O0O (129) (225) 9) (115) (221)
Corporate bond oooo (344,678) — — — —
Deferred income tax liabilittes OOOO0O0O0O — (36,739) (351) (5,990) (5,989)
(481,860)  (171,163) (360) (6,105) (6,210)
Net assets oooo 37,203 216,326 230,475 386,812 468,942
EQUITY 0o
Capital and reserves ooooa
Share capital oo 71,619 71,619 64,136 62,356 62,356
Reserves oo (33,649) 144,466 168,353 326,772 407,766
37,970 216,085 232,489 389,128 470,122
Non-controlling interests ooooao (767) 241 (2,014) (2,316) (1,180)
Total equity oooo 37,203 216,326 230,475 386,812 468,942
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